
1 
 

CITY OF DELAWARE 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
1 SOUTH SANDUSKY STREET 
7:00 P.M. REGULAR MEETING 

 
AGENDA 

 
 
6:30 P.M. EXECUTIVE SESSION: pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 
121.22 (G) (3) pending or imminent court action, Section 121.22 (G) (1) 
personnel, Section 121.22 (G) (5) matters required to be kept confidential by 
State statute, Section 121.22 (G) (2) acquisition of property for public purpose 
and 121.22(G) (8) consideration of confidential information related to a request 
for economic development assistance. 
 
7:00 P.M. REGULAR MEETING October 22, 2018 
 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
2. INVOCATION – Chaplain Jon Powers, Ohio Wesleyan University 

 
3.     PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
4. APPROVAL of the Motion Summary of the Regular Meeting of Council 

held on October 8, 2018, as recorded and transcribed. 
APPROVAL of the Motion Summary of the Work Session of Council held 
on October 1, 2018, as recorded and transcribed. 
 

5. CONSENT AGENDA 
A. Acceptance of the Motion Summary of the Board of Zoning Appeals 

meeting held on June 13, 2018, as recorded and transcribed.  
B. Acceptance of the Motion Summary of the Sister City Advisory 

Board meeting held on July 10, 2018, as recorded and transcribed.  
C. Acceptance of the Motion Summary of the Parking and Safety 

meeting held on August 20, 2018, as recorded and transcribed.  
D. Acceptance of the Motion Summary of the Parks and Recreation 

Advisory Board meeting held on July 17, 2018, as recorded and 
transcribed.  

E. Acceptance of the Motion Summary of the Planning Commission 
meeting held on September 5, 2018, as recorded and transcribed.  

F. Resolution No. 18-55, a resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
enter into an agreement with the Ohio Bureau of Criminal 
Investigations (BCI) for the use of the Volunteer and Employee 



2 
 

Criminal History System (VECHS), and to execute successor 
agreements between the same parties with substantially similar 
conditions.  

G. Resolution No. 18-56, a resolution authorizing the installation of a 
No Parking Anytime Zone on the west and north sides of Glengary 
Drive from 177 Glengary Drive to 207 Glengary Drive.  

H. Establish November 12, 2018 at 7:20 p.m. as a date and time for a 
public hearing and second reading of Ordinance No. 18-91, an 
ordinance for Simon Kenton Council Boy Scouts of America for 
approval of a Rezoning Amendment for Camp Lazarus from A-1 
(Agricultural District) to A-1 PMU (Agricultural District with a 
Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) encompassing approximately 
231 acres and located at 4422 Columbus Pike and Ordinance No. 
18-92, an ordinance for Simon Kenton Council Boy Scouts of 
America for approval of a Conditional Use Permit for Camp Lazarus 
to allow the placement of a PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay 
District) to be established at 4422 Columbus Pike on 
approximately 231 acres.   

I. Establish November 12, 2018 at 7:30 p.m. as a date and time for a 
public hearing and second reading of Ordinance No. 18-94, an 
ordinance approving a development text amendment to Ordinance 
No. 08-113 for Stavroff Land Development for Belmont Place (Sub-
Area A) for 102 single family lots and 5 commercial out lots located 
north of Peachblow Road and east of Glenn Parkway on 
approximately 49.6 acres zoned C-3, R-6, and A-1 PMU 
(Community Business District, Multi-Family Residential District 
and Agricultural District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay 
District. 

J. Establish November 12, 2018 at 7:45 p.m. as a date and time for a 
public hearing and second reading of Ordinance No. 18-98, an 
ordinance for Tim Colatruglio approving an alley Vacation for River 
Street Business Park encompassing approximately 2.94 acres (13 
properties) located at 45 River Street and zoned B-3 and R-4 PMU 
(Community Business District and Medium Density Residential 
District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District).  

K. Establish November 12, 2018 at 8:00 p.m. as a date and time for a 
public hearing and second reading of Ordinance No. 18-99, an 
ordinance for Manos Properties for approval of a Conditional Use 
Permit allowing The Wesleyan Inn at 235 West William Street on 
approximately 0.72 acres zoned PO/I (Planned 
Office/Institutional). 
 

6. LETTERS, PETITIONS, AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 



3 
 

7. PRESENTATION 
A. Annual Report on the Sister City Advisory Board – Rand Guebert, 

Chairman  
  
8. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 
9. SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 18-90, an ordinance finding that 

the creation of the Terra Alta Community Authority will be conducive to 
the public health, safety, convenience and welfare and is intended to 
result in the development of a new community; declaring that authority 
to be organized and a body politic and corporate; defining the boundary 
of that authority’s new community district; providing the method of 
appointing members to that the Authority’s Board of Trustees and fixing 
the surety for those trustee’s bonds.  
 

10. 7:30 P.M. PUBLIC HEARING AND THIRD READING of Ordinance No. 18-
89, an ordinance amending Section 917.14 of the Sanitary Sewer 
Regulations of the Streets, Utilities, and Public Services Code to add a 
fifty percent (50%) surcharge for non-city customers.   
 

11. THIRD READING of Ordinance No. 18-88, an ordinance amending 
Section 549.08 of the City of Delaware’s Codified Ordinances, relating to 
pointing and discharging firearms.   

 
12. FOURTH READING of Ordinance No. 18-80, an ordinance accepting the 

annexation of 221.341 ± acres of land more or less, description and map 
are attached hereto as exhibits “A” and “B” for the annexation known as 
the Central Ohio Boy Scouts of America – Camp Lazarus Annexation by 
Michael R. Shade, Agent for the Petitioners.   
 

13. FIFTH READING of Ordinance No. 18-73, an ordinance for Metro 
Development LLC, for approval of a Rezoning Amendment for the 
Highpoint Place Apartments (160 units) on approximately 16.70 acres 
(parcels 519-442-10-020-000 and 519-442-10-021-000) from R-6 (Multi-
Family Residential District) to R-6 PMU (Multi-Family Residential with a 
Planned Mixed Use overlay District) and located on the north side of 
Bowtown Road just west of Village Gate Apartments. 
 

14. FIFTH READING of Ordinance No. 18-74, an ordinance for Metro 
Development LLC, for approval of a Conditional Use Permit allowing the 
placement of a PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) to be 
established for the Highpoint Place Apartments (160 units) on 
approximately 16.70 acres (parcels 519-442-10-020-000 and 519-442-
10-021-000) and located on the north side of Bowtown Road just west of 



4 
 

Village Gate Apartments. 
 

15. FIFTH READING Ordinance No. 18-75, an ordinance for Metro 
Development LLC, for approval of a Preliminary Development Plan for the 
Highpoint Place Apartments (160 units) on approximately 16.70 acres 
(parcels 519-442-10-020-000 and 519-442-10-021-000) zoned R-6 PMU 
(Multi-Family Residential with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) and 
located on the north side of Bowtown Road just west of Village Gate 
Apartments. 

 
16. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-91, an ordinance for Simon 

Kenton Council Boy Scouts of America for approval of a Rezoning 
Amendment for Camp Lazarus from A-1 (Agricultural District) to A-1 
PMU (Agricultural District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) 
encompassing approximately 231 acres and located at 4422 Columbus 
Pike.  
 

17. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-92, an ordinance for Simon 
Kenton Council Boy Scouts of America for approval of a Conditional Use 
Permit for Camp Lazarus to allow the placement of a PMU (Planned 
Mixed Use Overlay District) to be established at 4422 Columbus Pike on 
approximately 231 acres.  
 

18. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-93, an ordinance for Simon 
Kenton Council Boy Scouts of America for approval of a Preliminary 
Development Plan for Camp Lazarus encompassing approximately 231 
acres zoned A-1 PMU and located at 4422 Columbus Pike.  
 

19. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-94, an ordinance approving a 
development text amendment to Ordinance No. 08-113 for Stavroff Land 
Development for Belmont Place (Sub-Area A) for 102 single family lots 
and 5 commercial out lots located north of Peachblow Road and east of 
Glenn Parkway on approximately 49.6 acres zoned C-3, R-6, and A-1 
PMU (Community Business District, Multi-Family Residential District 
and Agricultural District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District.  
 

20. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-95, an ordinance approving a 
Preliminary Development Plan for Stavroff Land Development for 
Belmont Place (Sub-Area A) for 102 single family lots and 5 commercial 
out lots located north of Peachblow Road and east of Glenn Parkway on 
approximately 49.6 acres zoned C-3, R-6 and A-1 PMU (Community 
Business District, Multi-Family Residential District and Agricultural 
District with a Planned Mixed Used Overlay District).  
 



5 
 

21. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-96, an ordinance approving a 
Preliminary Subdivision Plat for Stavroff Land Development for Belmont 
Place (Sub-Area A) for 102 single family lots and 5 commercial out lots 
located north of Peachblow Road and east of Glenn Parkway on 
approximately 49.6 acres zoned C-3, R-6, and A-1 PMU (Community 
Business District, Multi-Family Residential District and Agricultural 
District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District).  

 
22. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-97, an ordinance for Tim 

Colatruglio approving a Final Development Plan for River Street Business 
Park encompassing approximately 2.94 acres (13 properties) located at 
45 River Street and zoned B-3 and R-4 PMU (Community Business 
District and Medium Density Residential District with a Planned Mixed 
Use Overlay District).  

 
23. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-98, an ordinance for Tim 

Colatruglio approving an Alley Vacation for River Street Business Park 
encompassing approximately 2.94 acres (13 properties) located at 45 
River Street and zoned B-3 and R-4 PMU (Community Business District 
and Medium Density Residential District with a Planned Mixed Use 
Overlay District).  

 
24. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-99, an ordinance for Manos 

Properties for approval of a Conditional Use Permit allowing The 
Wesleyan Inn at 235 West William Street on approximately 0.72 acres 
zoned PO/I (Planned Office/Institutional).  

 
25. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-100, an ordinance for Manos 

Properties for approval of a Preliminary Development Plan for the 
Wesleyan Inn at 235 West William Street on approximately 0.72 acres 
zoned PO/I (Planned Office/Institutional).  

 
26. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-101, an ordinance supplementing 

the 2018 Appropriations Ordinance to provide additional funding for a 
lawsuit settlement, and declaring an emergency.  

 
27.  CONSIDERATION for Ordinance No. 18-102, an ordinance 

supplementing the 2018 Appropriations Ordinance to establish funding 
for the installation of a traffic signal at the intersection of US 23 and 
Glenn Parkway-Peachblow Road, and declaring an emergency.   

 
28. CONSIDERATION of Resolution No. 18-57, a resolution authorizing the 

extension of the school zone for Schultz Elementary School to include 
Rock Creek Drive north and south of Willow Run Lane, the installation of 



6 
 

school zone flashers on Rock Creek Drive and Applegate Lane, and the 
installation of Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacons (RRFB’s) at the 
crosswalk on Rock Creek Drive at Willow Run Lane.  

 
29. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-103, an ordinance supplementing 

the 2018 Appropriations Ordinance to establish additional funding for 
the purchase of equipment to install school zone flashers around Schultz 
Elementary and Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacons at the intersection 
of Rock Creek Drive and Willow Run, and declaring an emergency.   
 

30. CONSIDERATION of Resolution No. 18-58, a resolution authorizing the 
City Manager to sign and enter into an intergovernmental agreement 
with the Delaware County Commissioners for indigent defense services 
for Municipal Code Violations.   
 

31. CONSIDERATION of Resolution No. 18-59, a resolution in opposition to 
State Issue 1 in the November 2018 general election.  
 

32.   FINANCE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 
33.   CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
34. COUNCIL COMMENTS  
 
35. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 





























































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  CONSENT ITEM F DATE: 10/22/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 18-55 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Bruce Pijanowski, Police Chief 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AN  
AGREEMENT WITH THE OHIO BUREAU OF CRIMINAL INVESTIGATIONS (BCI) 
FOR THE USE OF THE VOLUNTEER AND EMPLOYEE CRIMINAL HISTORY 
SYSTEM (VECHS), AND TO EXECUTE SUCCESSOR AGREEMENTS BETWEEN THE 
SAME PARTIES WITH SUBSTANTIALLY SIMILAR CONDITIONS. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The City of Delaware Police Department has utilized the National WebCheck 
automated system since 2010.  The prior agreement was via a Memorandum of 
Understanding between the Delaware City Police Department and the Ohio 
Attorney General Office dated 10/26/10.  This service is provided to the public 
for purposes of obtaining criminal records checks for reasons of employment or 
certain volunteer activities involving juveniles.   
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
This new user agreement is required in order to continue using the Ohio 
Bureau of Criminal Investigation's Volunteer and Employee Criminal History 
System to screen potential volunteers and employees prior to hiring. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 



No additional cost to the city.  BCI bills the police department per record check, 
but the cost is recovered by payment from the person being fingerprinted.  
 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Bruce Pijanowski, Chief of Police 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Copy of Agreement 



RESOLUTION NO. 18-55 
 

 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AN  AGREEMENT WITH 
THE OHIO BUREAU OF CRIMINAL INVESTIGATIONS 
(BCI) FOR THE USE OF THE VOLUNTEER AND 
EMPLOYEE CRIMINAL HISTORY SYSTEM (VECHS), 
AND TO EXECUTE SUCCESSOR AGREEMENTS BETWEEN 
THE SAME PARTIES WITH SUBSTANTIALLY SIMILAR 
CONDITIONS. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware Police Department provides 

fingerprinting services for the purposes of required records check for volunteers 
and employers; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware Police Department wishes to continue 

this service, which the Ohio Bureau of Criminal Investigations (BCI) is required 
and willing to provide.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF DELAWARE, OHIO THAT: 
 

SECTION 1.  That the City of Delaware hereby agrees to the terms of the 
Ohio Bureau of Criminal Investigations Volunteer and Employee Criminal 
History System (VECHS) user agreement and authorizes the city manager to 
sign any such agreement to allow the police department to continue to submit 
finger print cards, and to execute successor agreements between the same 
parties with substantially similar conditions. 

 
SECTION 2.    This resolution shall be effective immediately upon its 

passage. 
   

 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 













  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  CONSENT ITEM G DATE: 10/22/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 18-56 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE INSTALLATION OF A NO PARKING 
ANYTIME ZONE ON THE WEST AND NORTH SIDES OF GLENGARY DRIVE 
FROM 177 GLENGARY DRIVE TO 207 GLENGARY DRIVE. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
A complaint was received regarding the safe maneuverability of vehicles along 
the curve on Glengary Drive when cars are parked on both sides of the street.  
This has been a recurring issue on Glengary Drive, and was before the Parking 
and Safety Committee meeting on 8/19/13.  At that meeting, the residents in 
attendance agreed to self-police the parking to remedy the issue, and no further 
action was taken.  The issue has been brought to the Parking Safety Committee 
again by residents and the Delaware City Schools, for the same reasons as 
before. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
The placement of regulatory signage requires City Council authorization for 
permanent enforcement. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
The action is being taken as a result of the Parking and Safety Committee 
recommendation at the October 15, 2018 meeting. 
 
 



FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
The cost of materials to install the signage is estimated at $150.00 to come out 
of the Public Works Traffic Division annual operating budget. 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
None 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Exhibit A 



RESOLUTION NO. 18-56 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE INSTALLATION 
OF A NO PARKING ANYTIME ZONE ON THE WEST 
AND NORTH SIDES OF GLENGARY DRIVE FROM 177 
GLENGARY DRIVE TO 207 GLENGARY DRIVE. 
 

WHEREAS, the No Parking Anytime Zone has been requested so as to 
provide for the safe maneuverability of vehicles along curve of Glengary Drive.  
 

WHEREAS, the Parking and Safety Committee has endorsed the 
installation of the a No Parking Anytime Zone on the west and north sides of 
the curve on Glengary Drive by a 2-0 vote at the October 15, 2018 meeting. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL FOR THE CITY 
OF DELAWARE, STATE OF OHIO: 
 

SECTION 1.  The No Parking Anytime Zone will be installed on the west 
and north sides of Glengary Drive from 177 Glengary Drive to 207 Glengary 
Drive. 

 
SECTION 2. That this resolution shall take effect and be in force 

immediately after its passage. 
 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS___ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 



Exhibit A - Glengary Dr 
No Parking Anytime Zone 

Legend    

Address

No Parking Anytime Zone

400 ft
N

➤➤

N
© 2018 Google

© 2018 Google

© 2018 Google



DELAWARE SISTER CITY ADVISORY BOARD 
5th ANNUAL REPORT - DRAFT 

AUGUST 1, 2018 
 

 
   Current Members:  Representing: 
                          
   Rand Guebert , Chair  Local citizens 
   Julie Horvath   Delaware City Schools 
   Darell Albon                              Ohio Wesleyan University 
   Julie Means   Local citizens 
   Carolyn Kay Riggle                  City Council 
   Colleen Rush   Local citizens 
   Rita Selle-Grider                       Local citizens 
    
 

INTRODUCTION 
 
As is fairly typical for a sister city program, we had unexpected opportunities and 
frustrations during the past year.   
 
Two members of our Board, Colleen Rush and Julie Horvath, worked with Delaware 
Hayes High School to organize a new contact with the town of Lahardane in Ireland.  
The Hayes marching band was able to visit Lahardane and participate in this year’s 
St. Patrick’s Day parade there.  A group of student athletes will be following up with 
a visit of their own in the Spring of 2019. 
 
We continued to develop our contacts with Sakata and Baumholder.  We are 
encouraged by the formation in Baumholder of a committee to work with us in 
planning activities—this is already smoothing our contacts with the City. 
 
We were also able to promote a program given last January by Luke Miller, a 
Delaware native who is cycling around the world in stages.  We would like to 
highlight the international exploits of local people where we can. 
 
 

FIFTH YEAR DEVELOPMENTS 
 

The Advisory Board continued to meet regularly on the second Tuesday of the first 
month of each quarter.  We experienced one change as Darrell Albon replaced Will 
Kopp as the OWU representative.  Tom Homan and Elaine McCloskey have been 
instrumental in providing us with administrative assistance. 
 
As mentioned in the Introduction, the highlight of the past year was the school visit 
to Lahardane, Ireland.  Our April meeting was devoted to a report by various 
students, parents and administrators who went.  It was by far our longest meeting, 



but it was very moving to hear the stories of students, parents and administrators 
who went.  A group of gymnasts from Hayes plans to visit Lahardane during Spring 
Break this year, and another small group of athletes will go in June.  We are glad to 
be able to support these initiatives.   
 
We are very glad that the new Sister City committee in Baumholder has been more 
responsive.  We thought when our year started that the long-awaited museum 
dedication would take place in May 2018, but it was postponed again to September 
14, 2018.  Efforts were made to mobilize local veterans to attend the dedication with 
city representatives, but this did not materialize, possibly due to the several 
postponements.  Mayor Riggle, Lisa Keller and Rand Guebert will represent City 
Council and the Advisory Board at the dedication (in the end, Mayor Riggle was 
unable to make the trip). 
 
With the initiative of the new Sister City committee in Baumholder, a delegation 
from there will visit Delaware from September 29 – October 6 very shortly after the 
museum dedication.  We are expecting 5-10 people and a program is being planned 
to show them our City and the surrounding community.  Baumholder is a very 
interesting town and we hope that more Delaware residents will be able to discover 
this in future years. 
 
Plans are underway with the City of Sakata to host an art exhibit in 2019 or 2020.  
The Ross Art Museum and The Arts Castle are assisting in this.  Dempsey Middle 
School again hosted 20 students from Sakata last November and will be doing this 
again in 2018.   The former Sister City liaison, Rika Abe, has returned to this position 
in the Sakata administration and this is very helpful for us. 
 
We have had no contact with Omutninsk in the last year, likely due to the unsettled 
political situation.  It is recommended that we let this situation continue to lie 
dormant. 
 
A new initiative this year was the presentation given by Luke Miller on January 9, 
2018 about his around-the-world bicycle trip.  The event was held at the Willis 
Education Center and was attended by about 70 people.  This presentation is 
consistent with our efforts to give Delaware a more international orientation. 
 
Each year we as a Board have to remind ourselves that we are an Advisory Board 
and that we have to recommend and support activities for which we have time and 
resources. 
 
 

OBJECTIVES FOR 2018-2019 
 

Our primary objective for the remainder of 2018 is to organize and execute the 
exchange of visits with Baumholder.  The District Mayor will come here, so we have 



a good opportunity to deepen our relationship with the City.  Dr. Jay Martin has been 
very helpful in facilitating a better relationship. 
 
We will be considering during the next year ways that we can continue to maintain 
regular contact with our sister cities and take some of the load off of Elaine 
McCloskey, who has been coordinating a number of contacts. 
 
Trips are planned to Lahardane in the coming year and work will progress on the 
art exchange with Sakata.  Three students from Delaware high schools are going 
overseas this year with Rotary to France, Japan and Brazil. 
 
Efforts are underway to have a more regular presence at First Fridays.  As a Board 
we are looking for opportunities to promote international activities for which there 
is enthusiasm in the community.  Schools have played an important part in the 
development of our sister cities, so this will be a specific area on which to focus. 
 
In closing, the Advisory Board would like to thank City Council, Tom Homan and 
Elaine McCloskiey for their support during the past year. 
 
 
Rand Guebert, Chair 
August 23, 2018 
 

 
 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEMS NO:  9     DATE: 10/22/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-90     RESOLUTION NO:  
 
READING: SECOND     PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
(Public Hearing held pursuant to Ordinance 18-77 on October 8, 2018 at 
7:30 p.m.) 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION: 
AN ORDINANCE FINDING THAT THE CREATION OF THE TERRA ALTA 
COMMUNITY AUTHORITY WILL BE CONDUCIVE TO THE PUBLIC HEALTH, 
SAFETY, CONVENIENCE AND WELFARE AND IS INTENDED TO RESULT IN THE 
DEVELOPMENT OF A NEW COMMUNITY; DECLARING THAT AUTHORITY TO BE 
ORGANIZED AND A BODY POLITIC AND CORPORATE; DEFINING THE BOUNDARY 
OF THAT AUTHORITY’S NEW COMMUNITY DISTRICT; PROVIDING THE METHOD 
OF APPOINTING MEMBERS TO THAT THE AUTHORITY’S BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
AND FIXING THE SURETY FOR THOSE TRUSTEES’ BONDS.  

BACKGROUND: 
UPDATE:  10/18/2018 
Unfortunately, as of this writing staff has not had a chance to meet with the 
applicant to discuss changes to the petition.  At this point, should council wish 
to proceed with the developer’s recent request to establish the NCA at the 
revised amount of 5.5 mills, the petition would need to be amended to reflect 
this.  In addition, language will need to be included regarding the length of the 
term and appointment to the authority as provided in Section 7.   
 
10/08/2018: 
A New Community Authority (NCA) is a charge put on residents’ property tax 
bill to help pay for infrastructure in the authority area.  The charge is usually 
used as a tool to facilitate future development.   



 
The City has two existing NCAs, which were created to help finance 
infrastructure put in by the City after the formation of the NCA. When the 
infrastructure is paid off, the charges will be removed from the taxes in the 
existing NCAs. 
 
The City has experienced some issues with residents in the current NCAs.  For 
example, the charge is often a source of confusion for residents who do not 
understand what the charge pays for.  Some residents feel the charge is too 
high.  Because it is based on millage (property tax value), owners of new 
houses are often surprised by the charge even though it was disclosed, because 
the tax rate on the auditor’s website is based on the value of the land when it 
was vacant.  Finally, during the levy campaign, residents in the NCA indicated 
they felt their NCA charge should already cover roads and were therefore 
reluctant to approve additional taxes. 
 
These agenda items are being placed together to track the public hearing (set 
by Ord. 18-77 as part of the NCA approval process) with the ordinance it is 
related to.  It is possible this ordinance will change prior to adoption as it is 
being reviewed by bond counsel.  If Council adopts guidelines for approving an 
NCA, a reference to those guidelines would also be added.  Prior to adoption of 
the ordinance, the applicant would need to amend the petition to reflect any 
changes Council may require regarding the amount and length of the NCA 
charge. 
 
A draft set of guidelines for future NCA charges is included in this packet for 
discussion purposes. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Council previously passed legislation declaring the NCA Petition was sufficient.  
The next step is consideration of whether to approve the NCA on policy 
grounds.  The public hearing was set by the prior legislation and this 
legislation is the vehicle for Council to decide to approve or deny the request.   
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
The petition anticipates 2250 new residents will reside in the district at full 
build out. The requested NCA would add a 7.5 mills charge to each parcel of 
property in the district.  This would result in a $.75 charge for each $1,000 of 
assessed valuation, which would appear on the residents’ property tax bill. 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
The present request being brought forward by the developer differs from our 
existing NCAs in the following ways. First, it would reimburse the developer as 
opposed to the City.  Second, the developer has indicated that it is intended to 



help finance amenities, but the majority of the items the developer would be 
reimbursed for through the charge are infrastructure items that traditionally 
are a developer’s responsibility to install. Third, part of the charge would go 
towards reimbursing the developer for infrastructure that has already been 
built, which does not fit with the City’s prior use of an NCA to finance future 
development.  Finally, the proposed NCA has no set end date. 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
R. Thomas Homan 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff is concerned that by adding a significant cost to the property tax bill of 
2250 new residents of the city, it will make it more difficult for city and school 
levies to pass.  In addition, based on the volume of calls generated by the 
existing NCAs, staff anticipates additional staff time will be required to help 
these new residents understand the charge.  Finally, staff believes approving 
this NCA will set a precedent for future NCA requests.  To the extent these 
expenses are related to amenities, they could be financed by a homeowners 
association (HOA) charge, which would make it clear what the charge is paying 
for and eliminate any confusion over perceived increased taxes.   
 
Since the filing of the petition, the developer has submitted a letter indicating 
they would accept a reduction to a 5.5 mill charge. Staff will present 
recommendations regarding the charge amount and term at the meeting.  The 
developer would have to amend the petition to effectuate any change. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Draft NCA Guidelines 
Petition 
 



Page 1 of 4 
 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 18-90 

AN ORDINANCE FINDING THAT THE CREATION OF 
THE TERRA ALTA COMMUNITY AUTHORITY WILL BE 
CONDUCIVE TO THE PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY, 
CONVENIENCE AND WELFARE AND IS INTENDED TO 
RESULT IN THE DEVELOPMENT OF A NEW 
COMMUNITY; DECLARING THAT AUTHORITY TO BE 
ORGANIZED AND A BODY POLITIC AND 
CORPORATE; DEFINING THE BOUNDARY OF THAT 
AUTHORITY’S NEW COMMUNITY DISTRICT; 
PROVIDING THE METHOD OF APPOINTING 
MEMBERS TO THAT THE AUTHORITY’S BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES AND FIXING THE SURETY FOR THOSE 
TRUSTEES’ BONDS.  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 349 of the Ohio Revised Code, Terra 
Alta, LLC (the “Developer”) filed a petition (the “Petition”) with the Council Clerk 
for the City of Delaware as provided in Section 349.03(A) of the Ohio Revised 
Code, with that Petition being for the establishment of The Terra Alta 
Community Authority (the “Authority”) and its proposed new community 
district (the “District”); and 

WHEREAS, this Council comprises the “organizational board of 
commissioners” for the proposed Authority, as that term is defined in Section 
349.01(F) of the Ohio Revised Code; and 

WHEREAS, by its Ordinance No. 18-77 adopted on September 10, 2018, 
this Council determined that the Petition complies with the requirements of 
Section 349.03 of the Ohio Revised Code and fixed the time and place for a 
public hearing on the establishment of the Authority pursuant to Section 
349.03(A) of the Ohio Revised Code, and that public hearing was held by this 
Council on October 8, 2018, after notice of that public hearing was published 
as required by law; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 349.04 of the Ohio Revised Code, this 
Council is responsible for establishing the method for selection of members of 
the Authority’s Board of Trustees and fixing their sureties. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 

SECTION 1. This Council finds and determines that the District will be 
conducive to the public health, safety, convenience and welfare and is intended 



Page 2 of 4 
 

to result in the development of a new community as defined in Section 
349.01(A) of the Ohio Revised Code. 
 

SECTION 2. The Petition, as revised and on file with the Council Clerk, is 
hereby accepted and shall be recorded, along with this Ordinance, in the 
journal of this Council, as the organizational board of commissioners, pursuant 
to Section 349.03 of the Ohio Revised Code. 
 

SECTION 3. The Authority is hereby organized and a body politic and 
corporate. 
 

SECTION 4. The corporate name of the Authority shall be “The Terra Alta 
Community Authority.” 
 

SECTION 5. The District shall have the boundaries set forth in the 
Petition. 
 

SECTION 6. The Board of Trustees of the Authority shall be composed of 
seven members. This Council shall appoint four members to the Board of 
Trustees (the “Citizen Members”), one of whom shall be appointed to represent 
local government (the “Local Government Representative”). The Developer shall 
appoint the remaining three members of the Board of Trustees to serve as 
representatives of the Developer (the “Developer Members”). Of its initial four 
appointments, Council shall designate two of those Citizen Members to serve 
initial one year terms and two of those Citizen Members to serve initial two year 
terms; and of its initial three appointments, the Developer shall designate two 
of those Developer Members to serve initial one year terms and one of those 
Developer Members to serve an initial two-year term. These initial 
appointments to the Board of Trustees of the Authority and all successor 
Members appointed or reappointed thereafter shall be appointed pursuant to 
and as provided by this Ordinance and Section 349.04 of the Ohio Revised 
Code. This Council shall appoint or reappoint, as appropriate, Citizen 
Members; and the Developer shall appoint or reappoint, as appropriate, 
Developer Members. Except as otherwise provided in this Section, all members 
of the Authority’s Board of Trustees shall be appointed to two year overlapping 
terms; provided that, notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance, 
the term of any Member shall not end until the due qualification for and 
assumption of office by a successor member duly appointed or reappointed, as 
applicable, all as provided herein and in Section 349.04 of the Ohio Revised 
Code. The oath of each member shall be filed with the Clerk of this Council. 
The appointments of Developer Members, including any necessary designations 
of terms, shall be in writing and filed with the Clerk of Council within ten (10) 
days after they are made. No Citizen Member shall be an employee of or have a 
financial interest in the Developer. Except as otherwise provided in this 
Section, at such time as this Council receives written notice from the Developer 
that the Developer no longer desires to appoint members to the Board of 



Page 3 of 4 
 

Trustees, arrangements shall be made by this Council and the Board of 
Trustees of the Authority for all members of the Board of Trustees to be elected 
as provided in Section 349.04 of the Revised Code with said election being 
conducted in the manner provided or customary for the election of a board of 
directors under Chapter 5312 of the Ohio Revised Code.  

 
SECTION 7. The following individuals are appointed by this Council to 

the following terms on the Board of Trustees of the Authority: 
 

Appointee Term Ending Member 
Designation 

Name: 
 
Address: 
 

  

Name: 
 
Address: 
 

  

Name: 
 
Address: 

  

Name: 
 
Address: 

  

 
 

SECTION 8. Pursuant to Section 349.04 of the Ohio Revised Code, each 
member of the Board of Trustees of the Authority, before entering upon their 
official duties, shall take and subscribe to an oath that the member will 
honestly and faithfully perform the duties of their office. That oath shall be filed 
in the office of the Clerk of Council. 
 

SECTION 9. Pursuant to Section 349.04 of the Ohio Revised Code, there 
shall be posted for each member of the Board of Trustees of the Authority a 
bond in the amount of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000) for the faithful 
performance of his or her duties. The bond shall be with a company authorized 
to conduct business within the State of Ohio as a surety and shall be deposited 
with and preserved by the Clerk of Council. 
 

SECTION 10. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council and any of its 
committees, and that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees 



Page 4 of 4 
 

that resulted in those formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in 
compliance with the law including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:  

 YEAS____NAYS____  
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018  YEAS____ NAYS____ 
       ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 
 

DMS 13255265v4 



 

Draft NCA Guidelines 

* NCA can be used to reimburse the city for infrastructure put in that benefits the development 

* NCA will not be approved to reimburse for building cost of items already built/installed 

* NCA will not be approved to reimburse for the cost of items typically required to be paid by developer, 
including but not limited to on-site local roads and utility lines.  

* The City will consider approving NCAs to cover amenities and infrastructure which have demonstrable 
utility above and beyond that which is required for the development as determined by the City 
Engineer.  Amenities and infrastructure must have a recognizable direct value to the residents living in 
the authority or major pieces of public infrastructure that have utility for more than just the 
development as determined by the City Engineer (such as Glenn Parkway) .   

* Length of time: City prefers NCAs with a time limit that has the effect of eliminating the additional 
charge or converting a home owner association charge to the same or lower total charge.  The purpose 
is to allow an HOA to be converted to an NCA which produces tax benefits for purposes of holding land 
while not increasing (and hopefully decreasing) the previous HOA fee.  

* The City may approve new community authorities containing a minimum of 200 total gross acres. 

* The city prefers NCA millage to be 5 mills or less but which shall be under no circumstance greater 
than 7.5 mills. 

* The city requires disclosure to potential renters, property owners, and other effected parties of the 
NCA charge.  This can be recorded separately upon the property and deed or as otherwise required in 
the sole discretion and direction of the city. 

























































































































































































































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  10    DATE: 10/22/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-89    RESOLUTION NO:   
 
READING: THIRD     PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       October 22, 2018 at 7:30 p.m. 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA: Darren Shulman, City Attorney  
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 917.14 OF THE SANITARY SEWER 
REGULATIONS OF THE STREETS, UTILITIES, AND PUBLIC SERVICES CODE 
TO ADD A FIFTY PERCENT (50%) SURCHARGE FOR NON-CITY CUSTOMERS. 
 
BACKGROUND:   
Annexation is a requirement for the City to provide sewer services.  The City has 
been approached by a group of non-residents that request city services because 
the package plant that currently provides sewer services to them is failing and 
the EPA wants to ends its use.  Former Public Utilities Director, Brad Stanton, 
Finance Director, Dean Stelzer, and City Manager R. Thomas Homan have been 
with the homeowners association to find a solution to provide sewer services to 
their area.  
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED:  
This property will likely never annex into the City.  Therefore, staff recommends 
implementing an out of city surcharge similar to the current charge for water.  
One reason for this amendment is to provide further stability in sewer funding.  
While sewer services are generally covered by sewer fees, in the event of a 
shortfall, general income tax dollars could be used.  Out of city residents do not 
pay taxes, and therefore, they would not contribute income tax dollars to cover 
any cost of providing sewer services beyond sewer fees. In this particular case, 
the sewer infrastructure in the development was not built to city specifications 
and will likely lead to costly maintenance.  As part of the agreement, each lot will 



pay a $1,000 fee to cover upcoming repair and maintenance on the 
sewer.  However, given the permanent nature of sewer service, when these funds 
have been spent, the City will continue to be required to pay for required 
upkeep.  An additional likely side effect of the surcharge will be to provide an 
incentive for those seeking sewer services to annex, which is consistent with the 
City’s current policy. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S):  
This will collect 50% more revenue for non-city sewer customers.  
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
The City’s general policy is to require annexation as a condition of providing 
sewer services.  This change is being recommended in recognition of the fact that 
these properties will likely never annex into the City.   
 
PRESENTER(S):  
Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
Blake Jordan, Public Utilities Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
Approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S):   
None 



ORDINANCE NO. 18-89 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 917.14 OF THE 
SANITARY SEWER REGULATIONS OF THE STREETS, 
UTILITIES, AND PUBLIC SERVICES CODE TO ADD A 
FIFTY PERCENT (50%) SURCHARGE FOR NON-CITY 
CUSTOMERS. 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Delaware Codified Ordinance Section 917.21(c) 
notes that properties outside of the city can be provided sewer service on the 
condition that they annex within sixty days of the property becoming 
contiguous to the City of Delaware; and 
 
 WHEREAS, sewer service has been requested for property that is unlikely 
to ever annex into the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, Delaware Codified Ordinance Sections 913.07 and 913.15 
allow the City to offer water service outside of the city limits but requires an 
additional charge of fifty percent (50%); and 

 
WHEREAS, recognizing the fact that some new connections will not 

annex into the City, Council desires to mirror the out of city water fee structure 
for sewer service. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Ordained by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  The Sewerage Service Charges Levied Section is amended as 
follows: 
 
917.14 Sewerage service charges levied.  
 
(b)(9) There shall be added to the schedule of user charge rates set forth 
in Section 917.14(b)(1) a fifty percent (50%) additional charge for all 
sewer service outside the City limits. 

This provision may be waived by the City Manager, with the concurrence 
of City Council, upon a finding of the existence of a specific necessity. 

 
SECTION 2. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 



 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 11    DATE: 10/22/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-88    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: THIRD    PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       October 8, 2018 at 8:00 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
  David Efland, Planning Director 
  Bruce Pijanowski, Chief of Police 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 549.08 OF THE CITY OF DELAWARE’S 
CODIFIED ORDINANCES, RELATING TO POINTING AND DISCHARGING 
FIREARMS.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
This issue has come to the forefront for pre-existing ranges for firearms, BB 
ranges, and archery ranges as a result of the pending final annexation for the 
Simon Kenton Council, Boy Scouts of America property located along US23 
south.  That use and site has long had a small BB range, firearm range, and 
archery range.  The use is clearly pre-existing and lawfully created as far as the 
City is aware, under the regulations applicable at the time of their creation for 
the property within the township.  This may not be the last such pre-existing 
use which might seek annexation to the city and wish to simply maintain what 
already might lawfully exist on a site.  For example, the Delaware County 
Sheriff range on US42 might one day seek to annex into the city.  The proposed 
revision is the most minor revision which would still allow a pre-existing use of 
this type.  Additionally, as proposed, the revision requires that a site be zoned 
for planned mixed use zoning which is operated, managed, and under the 
supervision of an approved institutional or governmental use.  This zoning step 



would provide City Council site specific review of this component of a site in 
addition to the stipulations of the proposed section herein. 
 
It is the opinion of Staff that the Simon Kenton Council, Boy Scouts of America 
site would fulfill the operational and pre-existing use stipulations proposed in 
section 549.08.  The property owner would have to bring forward and be 
approved for the required zoning in order to maintain the operation of these 
uses.  The draft proposed zoning text for the Boy Scouts property currently 
includes very specific language to this effect and further does not allow 
expansion of these components.   
 
This change will require holding a public hearing.  Currently, that is slated for 
October 8, 2018.  The final annexation hearing is slated for October 22, 2018.  
This leaves a third and final reading for the amendment proposed herein to 
coincide with the October 22, 2018 final annexation hearing as the applicant 
has indicated that maintaining these pre-existing uses is vital to their 
operation, mission, and consideration of being annexed. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Pre-existing ranges have not been heretofore accounted for within the codified 
ordinances.  There is a pending annexation which includes these uses. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
This would still restrict the pointing and discharge of firearms within the city 
while accounting and allowing for pre-existing lawfully created uses only if City 
Council approves corresponding zoning for a property and if such uses are 
operated under supervision of an approve institutional or governmental use. 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
David Efland, planning Director 
Bruce Pijanowski, Chief of Police 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval after second reading/public hearing to coincide with passage of 
Ordinance No. 18-80, annexation known as The Central Ohio Boy Scouts of 
America.  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
N/A 



ORDINANCE NO. 18-88 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 549.08 OF THE 
CITY OF DELAWARE’S CODIFIED ORDINANCES, 
RELATING TO POINTING AND DISCHARGING 
FIREARMS.  
 

WHEREAS, Section 549.08 has not been amended to account for pre-
existing use; and 

 
WHEREAS, Council is considering annexation of the Simon Kenton Council 

of the Boy Scouts of America property located on US23 south which conatins pre-
existing BB gun, fire arm, and archery ranges.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware; State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  549.08 of the City of Delaware Codified Ordinances shall be 
amended as follows: 
 

549.08. - Pointing and discharging firearms.  

(a) Except as provided in subsections (c), and (d), AND (E) hereof, no person 
shall discharge any air gun, rifle, shotgun, revolver, pistol or other firearm, or 
make use of any sling or arrow, within the corporate limits of the Municipality.  

(b) No person shall, intentionally and without malice, point or aim a firearm at 
or toward another or discharge a firearm so pointed or aimed.  

(c) This section does not extend to cases in which firearms, slings or arrows are 
used in self-defense, in the discharge of official duty or in justifiable homicide.  

(d) This section does not extend to cases in which BB guns and other air guns, 
or slings or arrows, are used in the confines of dwellings, provided such use is 
under adult supervision and is approved by the Chief of Police.  

(e) THIS SECTION DOES NOT EXTEND TO USES PERMITTED AS A 
LAWFUL PRE-EXISTING USE IN AN APPROVED PLANNED MIXED USE 
ZONING DISTRICT WHICH IS OPERATED, MANAGED, AND UNDER THE 
SUPERVISION OF AN APPROVED INSTITUTIONAL OR GOVERNMENTAL 
AGENCY OR USE.  

(F) Whoever violates this section is guilty of a misdemeanor of the fourth 
degree. 

 
 
 



SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  12    DATE: 10/22/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-80    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FOURTH    PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Dave Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE ACCEPTING THE ANNEXATION OF 221.341± ACRES OF 
LAND MORE OR LESS, DESCRIPTION AND MAP ARE ATTACHED HERETO AS 
EXHIBITS “A” AND “B” FOR THE ANNEXATION KNOWN AS THE CENTRAL 
OHIO BOY SCOUTS OF AMERICA – CAMP LAZARUS ANNEXATION BY 
MICHAEL R. SHADE,  AGENT FOR THE PETITIONERS. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This process involves several steps and actions by the County and City in order 
for an annexation to ultimately be accepted by the City.  The City took the first 
city step in the process which required determination of services the City could 
provide – the Resolution of Services passed June 11, 2018 via Resolution 18-
36.  The legislation before City Council currently is the final acceptance of 
annexation which would bring the property into the City.  City Council must 
decide to accept, accept with conditions, or deny the annexation.  If no action 
is taken by the ORC dictated time frame ending on November 1, 2018, ORC 
dictates that the annexation will be denied.  The applicant wishes to begin the 
rezoning process prior to final action by City Council and thus multiple 
readings of this legislation are anticipated with passage anticipated prior to the 
ORC required date of November 1, 2018.  The last scheduled City Council 
meeting date prior to November 1 is the meeting of October 22, 2018.  The 
anticipated zoning request for this unique set of uses is to a Planned Mixed Use 
Overlay.  Additionally, there is a small shooting range that has existed on this 
site and is still used by the Camp.  Section 549.08 – Pointing and Discharging 



Firearms of the City of Delaware Codified Ordinances generally prohibits the 
discharging of firearms for a range.  The City Attorney, Chief of Police, and 
Director of Planning have been working on an amendment to this section to 
allow for the continuation of this use but to ensure it is limited to very a 
specific pre-existing situation such as this.  This legislation is anticipated to be 
introduced at the City Council meeting of September 24, 2018 for first reading 
and the setting of a public hearing on October 8, 2018 to allow it to be reviewed 
and decided concurrently with the annexation review on October 22, 2018.  
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
The Ohio Revised Code provides the process that annexations must follow 
throughout Ohio.  This legislation is the final City step in the process to 
formally accept the annexation of the property.  The City has until November 1, 
2018 to pass this acceptance of annexation Ordinance or it is considered by 
ORC to be denied.  The applicant wishes to begin the rezoning process prior to 
final action by City Council and thus multiple readings of this legislation are 
anticipated with passage anticipated prior to the ORC required date of 
November 1, 2018. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Dave Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval by third reading coinciding with the passage of the Ordinance No. 18-
88, an ordinance amending Section 549.08 of the City of Delaware’s Codified 
Ordinances, relating to pointing and discharging firearms.  
  
ATTACHMENT(S) 
County Resolution  
Petition 
Map 
City Resolution  



ORDINANCE NO. 18-80 
 

AN ORDINANCE ACCEPTING THE ANNEXATION OF 
221.341± ACRES OF LAND MORE OR LESS, 
DESCRIPTION AND MAP ARE ATTACHED HERETO AS 
EXHIBITS “A” AND “B” FOR THE ANNEXATION KNOWN 
AS THE CENTRAL OHIO BOY SCOUTS OF AMERICA – 
CAMP LAZARUS ANNEXATION BY MICHAEL R. SHADE, 
 AGENT FOR THE PETITIONERS. 

 
WHEREAS, Michael R. Shade, agent for the petitioners, has filed with the 

Delaware County Commissioners for annexation of 221.341 acres of land, more or 
less, the description and map are attached hereto as Exhibits A and B; and 
 

WHEREAS, Michael R. Shade, as agent for the petitioners on June 6, 2018 
delivered to the Clerk of the Delaware City Council the notice of his filing of the 
annexation petition with the Board of County Commissioners of Delaware County 
and its clerk on June 6, 2018; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Ohio Revised Code requires that within 20 days following 
the date the petition is filed, the City Council shall, by resolution, adopt a 
statement as to what services, if any, the City will provide and an approximate 
date by which it will provide them to the territory proposed for annexation, upon 
annexation, which was completed when City Council passed a Resolution of 
Services on June 11, 2018 via Resolution 18-36; and 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed annexation applied for in the petition to the 

Delaware County Commissioners has been approved, by them for annexation to 
the City of Delaware on June 25 2018 (See attached)  The territory to be annexed 
is described in the attached Exhibits “A” and “B”; and 
 

WHEREAS, the certified transcript of the proceedings for annexation, with 
an accurate map of the territory, together with the petition of annexation and 
other papers relating to the proceedings of the County Commissioners, are on file 
with the Clerk of Council, and have been for more than sixty days. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That Council hereby accepts the annexation of 221.341 acres 
of land, description and plat of which are hereby attached as Exhibits “A” and “B” 
on the annexation known as the Joshua Morgan Annexation by Michael R. Shade, 
agent for the petitioners with the following conditions that: 



 
1. That upon annexation to the City of Delaware of 221.341± acres more or 

less as delineated on the attached Exhibits A and B, the Applicant/Property 
Owner at their sole expense shall provide and install all necessary lines, 
hydrants, and other appurtenances as required by the City in order to 
receive city utility services. 

 
SECTION 2.  That the Clerk of Council is directed to make five copies of this 

ordinance, to each of which shall be attached a copy of the map accompanying the 
petition for annexation, a copy of the transcript of proceedings of the Board of 
County Commissioners relating thereto, and a certificate as to the correctness 
thereof. The Clerk shall then forthwith deliver one copy to the Secretary of State, 
and shall file notice of annexation with the Board of Elections, the County Auditor, 
the County Recorder, and the County Engineer within thirty days after it becomes 
effective, and the Clerk shall do all other things required by law. 

 
SECTION 3.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 





































































































































































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  13    DATE: 10/22/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-73    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIFTH    PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       August 27, 2018 at 7:45 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR METRO DEVELOPMENT LLC., FOR APPROVAL OF A 
REZONING AMENDMENT FOR THE HIGHPOINT PLACE APARTMENTS (160 
UNITS) ON APPROXIMATELY 16.70 ACRES (PARCELS 519-442-10-020-000 
AND 519-442-10-021-000) FROM R-6 (MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 
DISTRICT) TO R-6 PMU (MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL WITH A PLANNED 
MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF 
BOWTOWN ROAD JUST WEST OF VILLAGE GATE APARTMENTS. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
UPDATE 10/22/2018 
Coming out of the last City Council meeting on this case, the Applicant 
requested the case be tabled to attempt to work through and improve upon the 
items noted by City Council including, density, building height, natural 
materials, infrastructure/roads, unit sizes, and the like.   To date the Applicant 
has not supplied a revised site plan or building plan addressing these 
issues.  The Applicant has provided an analysis of the cost of the initial portion 
of the required Ferguson Ave. extension.  That analysis (attached) shows the 
difference between a private driveway access cost and the estimated cost of the 
section of Ferguson Ave., which is almost $400,000.  Staff is unclear if the 
Applicant’s proposal is to simply give the city the difference in dollars between 
the two (if approved) for use potentially on Bowtown Rd. upgrades or other 
transportation improvements in the area or if the modification is simply to 



request a private driveway instead of the Ferguson Ave. improvements. 
Regardless, it is the opinion of the City Engineer that this section of Ferguson 
Ave. is required regardless as the roadway is shown on transportation plans 
and will eventually provide a needed roadway connection in this area.  The 
requirement is to build that section of Ferguson Ave. on the south side of the 
subject site to the reasonable logical termini and grant right of way and provide 
a contribution toward future construction on the north side of site.  Adjacent 
development would be required to complete the connection if and when 
development were to occur.   
 
Staff believes this does not necessarily address the concerns expressed by City 
Council as to density, building height, unit sizes, and natural materials or at 
least there does not seem to be a formal connection between the two proposed 
by the Applicant at this time.  Staff would encourage the Applicant to address 
at least some of these elements to the satisfaction of City Council, 
therefore.  However, Staff would also note that the difference between base 
code permitted density and that which is conditionally permitted is 
approximately 34 dwelling units.  The Applicant is proposing 27 additional 
units over base code which is below that which could be applied for under a 
Density Bonus Conditional Use Permit. From a traffic perspective, the 27 
additional units are deemed by the City Engineer to have no appreciable impact 
upon Bowtown Rd. but the Ferguson Ave. improvement is warranted 
regardless.  
 
Although Planning Commission recommended denial of these cases and 
therefore the original Staff recommendations may have gotten a bit lost in the 
overall discussion and between the two different apartment developments 
initially proposed, Staff would reference those recommended conditions (see 
initial Staff report recommendations) of approval which included conditions 
related to the items noted above in some instances.  Among the 24 conditions 
noted, one recommended capping the density at no more than 160 units above 
base code allowance but below potential CUP Density Bonus allowance.  One 
recommend that natural materials of brick or stone (with vinyl as an accent 
material only) should comprise the majority of the elevations on the public view 
side of the buildings (this would include any facing a public road such as 
Ferguson Ave.).  The planned development would also require the permanent 
preservation of the majority of the wooded area on the north side of the lot, 
which base code does not though replanting and/or payment in lieu of planting 
would be required if the woods were removed.  Staff would direct attention back 
to these original conditions when considering this case and after listening to 
the overall discussion on the 4-5 elements noted above as being improvements 
upon what could be sought by the Applicant in several respects under the base 
code or even conditional use density bonus provisions, though Staff respects 
and recognizes the concerns of both Planning Commission and City Council 
with the overall number and type of exceptions sought by the Applicant.  Again, 
Staff would encourage the Applicant to provide some site plan and design 



element enhancements that would better align with code and be more 
consistent with what City Council has indicated they might be willing to review. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1130 Amendments of the Codified 
Ordinances. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended denial of the case by a 4-3 vote on August 
1, 2018.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Engineer Cost Estimate 
Site Plan 
Memo from Sean Hughes pertaining to TIF 
Staff Report 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-73 
 

AN ORDINANCE FOR METRO DEVELOPMENT LLC, FOR 
APPROVAL OF A REZONING AMENDMENT FOR THE 
HIGHPOINT PLACE APARTMENTS (160 UNITS) ON 
APPROXIMATELY 16.70 ACRES (PARCELS 519-442-10-
020-000 AND 519-442-10-021-000) FROM R-6 (MULTI-
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) TO R-6 PMU (MULTI-
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE 
OVERLAY DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON THE NORTH 
SIDE OF BOWTOWN ROAD JUST WEST OF VILLAGE 
GATE APARTMENTS. 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission  at its meeting on August 1, 2018 
failed to recommend approval of a Rezoning Amendment for the Highpoint Place 
Apartments (160 units) on approximately 16.70 acres (parcels 519-442-10-020-
000 and 519-442-10-021-000) from R-6 (Multi-Family Residential District) to R-6 
PMU (Multi-Family Residential District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) 
and located on the north side of Bowtown Road just west of Village Gate 
Apartments (PC Case 2018-1402).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Council of the City of Delaware overturns the 
recommendation of denial by the Planning Commission of the Rezoning 
Amendment for the Highpoint Place Apartments (160 units) on approximately 
16.70 acres (parcels 519-442-10-020-000 and 519-442-10-021-000) from R-6 
(Multi-Family Residential District) to R-6 PMU (Multi-Family Residential District 
with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) and located on the north side of 
Bowtown Road just west of Village Gate Apartments, is hereby confirmed, 
approved, and accepted with the following conditions that: 
 

1. Any new structure(s) or any change of land use shall require 
conformance to all provision of the Development Text and any conditions 
of approval. 

2. Any revisions the public or private street layout shall require 
conformance to all provisions of the Development Text and any 
conditions of approval. 

3. The maximum amount of multi-family dwelling units permitted shall not 
exceed 160 dwelling units. 

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 



this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



FACT SHEET

AGENDA ITEM NO:  14  DATE: 10/22/2018 

ORDINANCE NO: 18-74  RESOLUTION NO: 

READING: FIFTH PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
August 27, 2018 at 7:45 p.m. 

TO: Mayor and Members of City Council  

FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 

VIA: David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 

TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION: 
AN ORDINANCE FOR METRO DEVELOPMENT LLC.,  FOR APPROVAL OF A 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT ALLOWING THE PLACEMENT OF A PMU 
(PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) TO BE ESTABLISHED FOR THE 
HIGHPOINT PLACE APARTMENTS (160 UNITS) ON APPROXIMATELY 16.70 
ACRES (PARCELS 519-442-10-020-000 AND 519-442-10-021-000) AND 
LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF BOWTOWN ROAD JUST WEST OF 
VILLAGE GATE APARTMENTS.  

BACKGROUND: 
UPDATE 10/22/2018 
Coming out of the last City Council meeting on this case, the Applicant 
requested the case be tabled to attempt to work through and improve upon the 
items noted by City Council including, density, building height, natural 
materials, infrastructure/roads, unit sizes, and the like.   To date the Applicant 
has not supplied a revised site plan or building plan addressing these 
issues.  The Applicant has provided an analysis of the cost of the initial portion 
of the required Ferguson Ave. extension.  That analysis (attached) shows the 
difference between a private driveway access cost and the estimated cost of the 
section of Ferguson Ave., which is almost $400,000.  Staff is unclear if the 
Applicant’s proposal is to simply give the city the difference in dollars between 
the two (if approved) for use potentially on Bowtown Rd. upgrades or other 
transportation improvements in the area or if the modification is simply to 



request a private driveway instead of the Ferguso Ave. improvements. 
Regardless, it is the opinion of the City Engineer that this section of Ferguson 
Ave. is required regardless as the roadway is shown on transportation plans 
and will eventually provide a needed roadway connection in this area.  The 
requirement is to build that section of Ferguson Ave. on the south side of the 
subject site to the reasonable logical termini and grant right of way and provide 
a contribution toward future construction on the north side of site.  Adjacent 
development would be required to complete the connection if and when 
development were to occur.   
 
Staff believes this does not necessarily address the concerns expressed by City 
Council as to density, building height, unit sizes, and natural materials or at 
least there does not seem to be a formal connection between the two proposed 
by the Applicant at this time.  Staff would encourage the Applicant to address 
at least some of these elements to the satisfaction of City Council, 
therefore.  However, Staff would also note that the difference between base 
code permitted density and that which is conditionally permitted is 
approximately 34 dwelling units.  The Applicant is proposing 27 additional 
units over base code which is below that which could be applied for under a 
Density Bonus Conditional Use Permit. From a traffic perspective, the 27 
additional units are deemed by the City Engineer to have no appreciable impact 
upon Bowtown Rd. but the Ferguson Ave. improvement is warranted 
regardless.  
 
Although Planning Commission recommended denial of these cases and 
therefore the original Staff recommendations may have gotten a bit lost in the 
overall discussion and between the two different apartment developments 
initially proposed, Staff would reference those recommended conditions (see 
initial Staff report recommendations) of approval which included conditions 
related to the items noted above in some instances.  Among the 24 conditions 
noted, one recommended capping the density at no more than 160 units above 
base code allowance but below potential CUP Density Bonus allowance.  One 
recommend that natural materials of brick or stone (with vinyl as an accent 
material only) should comprise the majority of the elevations on the public view 
side of the buildings (this would include any facing a public road such as 
Ferguson Ave.).  The planned development would also require the permanent 
preservation of the majority of the wooded area on the north side of the lot, 
which base code does not though replanting and/or payment in lieu of planting 
would be required if the woods were removed.  Staff would direct attention back 
to these original conditions when considering this case and after listening to 
the overall discussion on the 4-5 elements noted above as being improvements 
upon what could be sought by the Applicant in several respects under the base 
code or even conditional use density bonus provisions, though Staff respects 
and recognizes the concerns of both Planning Commission and City Council 
with the overall number and type of exceptions sought by the Applicant.  Again, 
Staff would encourage the Applicant to provide some site plan and design 



element enhancements that would better align with code and be more constant 
with what City Council has indicated they might be willing to review. 
 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1148 Conditional Use Regulations of the 
zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended denial of the case by a vote 4-3 on August 
1, 2018.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Memo from Sean Hughes pertaining to TIF 
Staff Report 
 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-74 
 

AN ORDINANCE FOR METRO DEVELOPMENT LLC.,  
FOR APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 
ALLOWING THE PLACEMENT OF A PMU (PLANNED 
MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) TO BE ESTABLISHED 
FOR THE HIGHPOINT PLACE APARTMENTS (160 UNITS) 
ON APPROXIMATELY 16.70 ACRES (PARCELS 519-442-
10-020-000 AND 519-442-10-021-000) AND LOCATED 
ON THE NORTH SIDE OF BOWTOWN ROAD JUST WEST 
OF VILLAGE GATE APARTMENTS. 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on August 1, 2018 
failed to recommended approval of a Conditional Use Permit allowing the 
placement of a PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) to be established for the 
Highpoint Place Apartments (160 units) on approximately 16.70 acres (parcels 
519-442-10-020-000 and 519-442-10-021-000) and located on the north side of 
Bowtown Road just west of Village Gate Apartments (PC Case 2018-1403). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Council of the City of Delaware overturns the 
recommendation of denial by the Planning Commission of a Conditional Use 
Permit allowing the placement of a PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) to be 
established for the Highpoint Place Apartments (160 units) on approximately 
16.70 acres (parcels 519-442-10-020-000 and 519-442-10-021-000) and located 
on the north side of Bowtown Road just west of Village Gate Apartments, is hereby 
confirmed, approved, and accepted. 

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



FACT SHEET

AGENDA ITEM NO: 15  DATE: 10/22/2018 

ORDINANCE NO: 18-75  RESOLUTION NO: 

READING: FIFTH PUBLIC HEARING: NO 

TO: Mayor and Members of City Council  

FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 

VIA: David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 

TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION: 
AN ORDINANCE FOR METRO DEVELOPMENT LLC, FOR APPROVAL OF A 
PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR THE HIGHPOINT PLACE 
APARTMENTS (160 UNITS) ON APPROXIMATELY 16.70 ACRES (PARCELS 519-
442-10-020-000 AND 519-442-10-021-000) ZONED R-6 PMU (MULTI-FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) AND 
LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF BOWTOWN ROAD JUST WEST OF 
VILLAGE GATE APARTMENTS.  

BACKGROUND: 
UPDATE 10/22/2018 
Coming out of the last City Council meeting on this case, the Applicant 
requested the case be tabled to attempt to work through and improve upon the 
items noted by City Council including, density, building height, natural 
materials, infrastructure/roads, unit sizes, and the like.   To date the Applicant 
has not supplied a revised site plan or building plan addressing these 
issues.  The Applicant has provided an analysis of the cost of the initial portion 
of the required Ferguson Ave. extension.  That analysis (attached) shows the 
difference between a private driveway access cost and the estimated cost of the 
section of Ferguson Ave., which is almost $400,000.  Staff is unclear if the 
Applicant’s proposal is to simply give the city the difference in dollars between 
the two (if approved) for use potentially on Bowtown Rd. upgrades or other 
transportation improvements in the area or if the modification is simply to 
request a private driveway instead of the Ferguson Ave. improvements. 



Regardless, it is the opinion of the City Engineer that this section of Ferguson 
Ave. is required regardless as the roadway is shown on transportation plans 
and will eventually provide a needed roadway connection in this area.  The 
requirement is to build that section of Ferguson Ave. on the south side of the 
subject site to the reasonable logical termini and grant right of way and provide 
a contribution toward future construction on the north side of site.  Adjacent 
development would be required to complete the connection if and when 
development were to occur.   
 
Staff believes this does not necessarily address the concerns expressed by City 
Council as to density, building height, unit sizes, and natural materials or at 
least there does not seem to be a formal connection between the two proposed 
by the Applicant at this time.  Staff would encourage the Applicant to address 
at least some of these elements to the satisfaction of City Council, 
therefore.  However, Staff would also note that the difference between base 
code permitted density and that which is conditionally permitted is 
approximately 34 dwelling units.  The Applicant is proposing 27 additional 
units over base code which is below that which could be applied for under a 
Density Bonus Conditional Use Permit. From a traffic perspective, the 27 
additional units are deemed by the City Engineer to have no appreciable impact 
upon Bowtown Rd. but the Ferguson Ave. improvement is warranted 
regardless.  
 
Although Planning Commission recommended denial of these cases and 
therefore the original Staff recommendations may have gotten a bit lost in the 
overall discussion and between the two different apartment developments 
initially proposed, Staff would reference those recommended conditions (see 
initial Staff report recommendations) of approval which included conditions 
related to the items noted above in some instances.  Among the 24 conditions 
noted, one recommended capping the density at no more than 160 units above 
base code allowance but below potential CUP Density Bonus allowance.  One 
recommend that natural materials of brick or stone (with vinyl as an accent 
material only) should comprise the majority of the elevations on the public view 
side of the buildings (this would include any facing a public road such as 
Ferguson Ave.).  The planned development would also require the permanent 
preservation of the majority of the wooded area on the north side of the lot, 
which base code does not though replanting and/or payment in lieu of planting 
would be required if the woods were removed.  Staff would direct attention back 
to these original conditions when considering this case and after listening to 
the overall discussion on the 4-5 elements noted above as being improvements 
upon what could be sought by the Applicant in several respects under the base 
code or even conditional use density bonus provisions, though Staff respects 
and recognizes the concerns of both Planning Commission and City Council 
with the overall number and type of exceptions sought by the Applicant.  Again, 
Staff would encourage the Applicant to provide some site plan and design 



element enhancements that would better align with code and be more constant 
with what City Council has indicated they might be willing to review. 
 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1129.04 Procedures of the Codified 
Ordinances. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended denial of the case by a vote of 4-3 on 
August 1, 2018.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Memo from Sean Hughes pertaining to TIF 
Staff Report 
 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-75 
 

AN ORDINANCE FOR METRO DEVELOPMENT LLC, FOR 
APPROVAL OF A PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
FOR THE HIGHPOINT PLACE APARTMENTS (160 UNITS) 
ON APPROXIMATELY 16.70 ACRES (PARCELS 519-442-
10-020-000 AND 519-442-10-021-000) ZONED R-6 PMU 
(MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL WITH A PLANNED MIXED 
USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON THE 
NORTH SIDE OF BOWTOWN ROAD JUST WEST OF 
VILLAGE GATE APARTMENTS.  
 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on August 1, 2018 
failed to recommend approval of a Preliminary Development Plan for the Highpoint 
Place Apartments (160 units) on approximately 16.70 acres (parcels 519-442-10-
020-000 and 519-442-10-021-000) zoned R-6 PMU (Multi-Family Residential 
District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) and located on the north side 
of Bowtown Road just west of Village Gate Apartments (PC Case 2018-1404). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Council of the City of Delaware overturns 
recommendation of denial by the Planning Commission of the Preliminary 
Development Plan for the Highpoint Place Apartments (160 units) on 
approximately 16.70 acres (parcels 519-442-10-020-000 and 519-442-10-021-
000) zoned R-6 PMU (Multi-Family Residential District with a Planned Mixed Use 
Overlay District) and located on the north side of Bowtown Road just west of 
Village Gate Apartments, is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted with the 
following conditions that: 

1. The applicant needs to obtain engineering approvals, including any 
storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the 
Engineering and Utilities Departments.  All comments regarding the 
layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject to 
modification or change based on the final technical review by the 
Engineering Department once a complete plan set is submitted for 
review. 

2. The traffic impact study shall be approved by the City and the developer 
shall be responsible for any improvements and/or financial obligations of 
the traffic impact study per the City Engineer and/or County Engineer. 

3. Ferguson Avenue from Bowtown Road shall be extended north to the 
adjacent property line per the City Engineer. 

4. The developer shall dedicate the appropriate right-of-way and make a 
payment in lieu to be determined by the City Engineer for the Ferguson 



Avenue extension along the northern portion of the property that would 
be constructed when the adjacent properties are developed. 

5. A bike path shall be constructed on the east side of Ferguson Avenue per 
the adopted Bicycle and Pedestrians Master Plan 2027 and a side walk 
shall be required on the west side of Ferguson Avenue. 

6. A bike path shall be constructed on the north side of Bowtown Road per 
the adopted Bicycle and Pedestrians Master Plan 2027. 

7. The density of the multi-family portion of the development shall not 
exceed 160 units. 

8. The one and two bedroom apartment unit sizes shall range in size 
between a minimum 678 (one bedroom) to 933 (two bedroom) square 
feet. 

9. The height of the buildings shall not exceed 42 feet (to the peak of the 
eave) and shall not exceed 3 stories. 

10. The apartment building elevations shall have the majority of the 
elevation constructed of brick or stone with vinyl used as an accent 
material on the public view side of the building.  Hardi plank or 
equivalent could be substituted for the vinyl siding to meet natural 
material requirements as well. Any limestone on the buildings shall be 
constructed of Delaware blue vein limestone or equivalent as approved 
by staff. 

11. The Ferguson Avenue right-of-way shall be setback a minimum 20 feet 
from the residential property to the west, 

12. The trash compactor enclosure shall be constructed of brick or stone 
wall to match the buildings and have wood doors painted to match and 
shall be buffered form the residential property to the east,. 

13. The road frontage along Ferguson Avenue and Bowtown Road that is not 
adjacent to a single family property shall have a 2-3 foot high undulating 
mound with landscaping (a mixture of deciduous trees, evergreen trees 
and shrubs) 

14. A 5-6 foot high mound with landscaping and minimum 6 foot high 
evergreen trees planted in a soldier course manner shall be required  
along the east  and west side of Ferguson Avenue adjacent to the existing 
single family properties fronting Bowtown Road 

15. The parking islands within the apartment development shall be planted 
with street trees. 

16. All landscape plans shall be reviewed and approved by the Shade Tree 
Commission. 

17. The open space within the apartment development shall have more 
amenities including pavilions, benches, dog park, recreational fields and 



the like  and to ensure any field space is flat and does not provide storm 
water drains except at the edges of the area to eliminate catch basins 
being located in the middle of any playing surface.   

18. The tree preservation area shall be located within a permanent 
preservation easement with the appropriate language that would need to 
be reviewed and approved by staff and then be recorded at the County. 

19. Lighting plans that achieves compliance with the zoning code and 
approved development text that would need to be approved by the Chief 
Building Official shall be required with Final Development Plan 
submittal. 

20. A comprehensive sign plan that achieves compliance with the zoning 
code requirements, the approved development text and the adopted 
Gateways and Corridors Plan shall be required with the Final 
Development Plan submittal. 

21. The private street names shall be submitted and approved by the City 
and other appropriate agencies.  

22. The entire development shall achieve compliance with the Fire 
Department and Public Works development final requirements after the 
final review is complete. 

23. An emergency access location shall be located through the Village Gate 
Apartments to the east if possible. If not possible another location shall 
be established and approved by the City Engineer and Fire Department 
prior to Final Development Plan submittal. 

24. The garages shall not be rented out to any non-residents of the 
apartment complex or for any use or occupancy other than storage of 
vehicles. 

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



Trail's End

ENGINEER'S PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE 470 Olde Worthington Road
Bowtown North Site - Public Roadway Improvements

City of Delaware, Ohio 

ITEM QUANTITY UNIT DESCRIPTION UNIT COST TOTAL

EARTHWORK

201 LUMP SUM Clearing and Grubbing $10,000.00 $10,000.00
203 1,133 SY Subgrade Compaction $1.62 $1,835.46
203 3,900 CY Excavation including embankment $5.00 $19,500.00

ROADWAY PAVEMENT (PRIVATE)

301 74 CY Asphalt Concrete Aggregate Base (3") $160.00 $11,840.00
304 148 CY Aggregate Base (6") $60.00 $8,880.00
407 890 SY Tack Coat $3.00 $2,670.00
423 100 LF Crack Seal $1.00 $100.00
448 37 CY Asphalt Concrete (1.5" Surface Course) $210.00 $7,770.00
448 50 CY Asphalt Concrete (2" Intermediate Course) $155.00 $7,750.00
604 400 LF Straight Curb $9.00 $3,600.00
604 400 LF Curb & Gutter $21.00 $8,400.00
605 800 LF Pipe Underdrain (4") $6.00 $4,800.00
608 3,800 SF Concrete (4' Wide and 4" Thick, for Sidewalk) $5.00 $19,000.00
608 4 EA Curb Ramp $2,500.00 $10,000.00

GENERAL ROADWAY

625 LUMP SUM Lighting $15,000.00 $15,000.00

STORM SEWER

603 30 LF 12" Storm Drain $41.47 $1,244.10
603 22 LF 15" Storm Drain $46.39 $1,020.58
603 90 LF 18" Storm Drain $50.94 $4,584.60
604 2 EA Curb & Gutter Inlet $1,453.76 $2,907.52
604 1 EA Type "C" Manhole $2,402.61 $2,402.61
604 1 EA Headwall $2,400.00 $2,400.00
604 1 EA Catch Basin $1,200.00 $1,200.00

LUMP SUM Erosion & Sediment Controls $25,000.00 $25,000.00

SUMMARY

Mobilization $22,066
Earthwork Subtotal $31,335

Roadway Pavement Subtotal $84,810
General Roadway Subtotal $15,000

Storm Sewer Subtotal $40,759
Preliminary Cost Estimate (Rounded to Nearest Hundred) $194,000

20% Contingency $38,800.00

Preliminary Cost Estimate + Contingency $232,800.00

ASSUMPTIONS AND EXCLUSIONS

1)

2)

Prepared by: Rick Harkless, PM
Reviewed by:

(614) 540-6633 (614) 540-2400

STATEMENTS OF PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST AND DETAILED COST ESTIMATES PREPARED BY THE ENGINEER 
REPRESENTS HIS BEST JUDGEMENT AS A DESIGN PROFESSIONAL FAMILIAR WITH THE CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY.  IT IS 
RECOGNIZED, HOWEVER, THAT THE ENGINEER HAS NO CONTROL OVER THE COST OF LABOR, MATERIALS, OR EQUIPMENT, 
OVER THE CONTRACTOR'S METHODS OF DETERMINING BID PRICES, OR OVER COMPETITIVE BIDDING OR MARKET 
CONDITIONS, ACCORDINGLY, THE ENGINEER CANNOT AND DOES NOT GUARANTEE THAT BIDS WILL NOT VARY FROM ANY 
STATEMENT OF PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST OR OTHER COST ESTIMATES PREPARED BY HIM.

Civil & Environmental Consultants
250 W. Old Wilson Bridge Road
Suite 250

CEC Job #174-901

Metro Development, LLC

Items that have been excluded from this preliminary cost estimate include sanitary sewer, public water, roadway stormwater 
management and offsite public improvements along Bowtown Road.
Roadway Section is based on the City of Delaware Collector Pavement Section, RDWD-7.0

Suite 100

October 12, 2018

P:\2017\174-901\-Cost Estimates\North Site\174-901 Engineer's Cost Estimate20181015.xls



























































































































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  16    DATE: 10/22/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-91    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       November 12, 2018 at 7:20 p.m.  
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR SIMON KENTON COUNCIL BOY SCOUTS OF AMERICA 
FOR APPROVAL OF A REZONING AMENDMENT FOR CAMP LAZARUS FROM 
A-1 (AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT) TO A-1 PMU (AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT 
WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) ENCOMPASSING 
APPROXIMATELY 231 ACRES AND LOCATED AT 4422 COLUMBUS PIKE.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1130 Amendments of the Codified 
Ordinances. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 7-0 on October 17, 
2018.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 



 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-91 
 

AN ORDINANCE FOR SIMON KENTON COUNCIL BOY 
SCOUTS OF AMERICA FOR APPROVAL OF A REZONING 
AMENDMENT FOR CAMP LAZARUS FROM A-1 
(AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT) TO A-1 PMU 
(AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED 
USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) ENCOMPASSING 
APPROXIMATELY 231 ACRES AND LOCATED AT 4422 
COLUMBUS PIKE.  
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on October 17, 2018 
recommended approval of a Rezoning Amendment for Simon Kenton Council Boy 
Scouts of America for  Camp Lazarus from A-1 (Agricultural District) to A-1 PMU 
(Agricultural District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) encompassing 
approximately 231 acres and located at 4422 Columbus Pike (PC Case 2018-
2385).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Rezoning Amendment for Simon Kenton Council Boy 
Scouts of America for  Camp Lazarus from A-1 (Agricultural District) to A-1 PMU 
(Agricultural District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) encompassing 
approximately 231 acres and located at 4422 Columbus Pike, is hereby confirmed, 
approved, and accepted with the following condition that: 
 
1) Any future changes shall require conformance to all provision of the 

Development Text. 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  17    DATE: 10/22/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-92    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       November 12, 2018 at 7:20 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR SIMON KENTON COUNCIL BOY SCOUTS OF AMERICA 
FOR APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR CAMP LAZARUS TO 
ALLOW THE PLACEMENT OF A PMU (PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT) TO BE ESTABLISHED AT 4422 COLUMBUS PIKE ON 
APPROXIMATELY 231 ACRES.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1148 Conditional Use Regulations of the 
zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 7-0 on October 17, 
2018.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 



 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-92 
 

AN ORDINANCE FOR SIMON KENTON COUNCIL BOY 
SCOUTS OF AMERICA FOR APPROVAL OF A 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR CAMP LAZARUS TO 
ALLOW THE PLACEMENT OF A PMU (PLANNED MIXED 
USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) TO BE ESTABLISHED AT 4422 
COLUMBUS PIKE ON APPROXIMATELY 231 ACRES. 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on October 17, 2018 
recommended approval of a Conditional Use Permit for Simon Kenton Council Boy 
Scouts of America for  Camp Lazarus to allow the placement of a PMU (Planned 
Mixed Use Overlay District) to be established at 4422 Columbus Pike on 
approximately 231 acres (PC Case 2018-2387).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Conditional Use Permit for Simon Kenton Council Boy 
Scouts of America for  Camp Lazarus to allow the placement of a PMU (Planned 
Mixed Use Overlay District) to be established at 4422 Columbus Pike on 
approximately 231 acres, is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted. 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  18    DATE: 10/22/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-93    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR SIMON KENTON COUNCIL BOY SCOUTS OF AMERICA 
FOR APPROVAL OF A PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR CAMP 
LAZARUS ENCOMPASSING APPROXIMATELY 231 ACRES ZONED A-1 PMU 
AND LOCATED AT 4422 COLUMBUS PIKE.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1129.04 Procedures of the Codified 
Ordinances. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 7-0 on October 17, 
2018.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 



David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-93 
 

AN ORDINANCE FOR SIMON KENTON COUNCIL BOY 
SCOUTS OF AMERICA FOR APPROVAL OF A 
PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR CAMP 
LAZARUS ENCOMPASSING APPROXIMATELY 231 
ACRES ZONED A-1 PMU AND LOCATED AT 4422 
COLUMBUS PIKE.  
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on October 17, 2018 
recommended approval of a Preliminary Development Plan for Simon Kenton 
Council Boy Scouts of America for Camp Lazarus encompassing approximately 
231 acres zoned A-1 PMU and located at 4422 Columbus Pike (PC Case 2018-
2386).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Preliminary Development Plan  for Simon Kenton 
Council Boy Scouts of America for Camp Lazarus  encompassing approximately 
231 acres zoned A-1 PMU and located at 4422 Columbus Pike, is hereby 
confirmed, approved, and accepted with the following conditions that: 
 
1) Any new or existing road(s) to be constructed and/or widened within the 

development shall comply with the development text. 
2) Any new or existing utilities to be constructed and/or extended within the 

development shall comply with the City minimum requirements or as approved 
by the City Director of Utilities.  

3) Any new building shall achieve compliance with the design standards of the 
approved development text. 

4) Any new signage shall achieve compliance with approved development text. 
5) Any lighting plan shall be reviewed and approved by the Chief Building Official 

and achieve compliance with approved development text 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
 



VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 









































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  19    DATE: 10/22/18 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-94    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       November 12, 2018 at 7:30 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A DEVELOPMENT TEXT AMENDMENT TO 
ORDINANCE 08-113 FOR STAVROFF LAND DEVELOPMENT FOR BELMONT 
PLACE (SUB-AREA A) FOR 102 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS AND 5 COMMERCIAL 
OUT LOTS LOCATED NORTH OF PEACHBLOW ROAD AND EAST OF GLENN 
PARKWAY ON APPROXIMATELY 49.6 ACRES ZONED C-3, R-6 AND A-1 PMU 
(COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT, MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT 
AND AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT).  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1130 Amendments of the Codified 
Ordinances. 
 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 7-0 on October 17, 
2018.  
 
 



FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-94 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A DEVELOPMENT TEXT 
AMENDMENT TO ORDINANCE 08-113 FOR STAVROFF 
LAND DEVELOPMENT FOR BELMONT PLACE (SUB-
AREA A) FOR 102 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS AND 5 
COMMERCIAL OUT LOTS LOCATED NORTH OF 
PEACHBLOW ROAD AND EAST OF GLENN PARKWAY 
ON APPROXIMATELY 49.6 ACRES ZONED C-3, R-6 AND 
A-1 PMU (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT, MULTI-
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT AND AGRICULTURAL 
DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT).  
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of October 17, 2018 
recommended approval of a Development Text Amendment to Ordinance 08-113 
for Stavroff Land Development for Belmont Place (Sub-Area A) for 102 single 
family lots and 5 commercial out lots located north of Peachblow Road and east of 
Glenn Parkway on approximately 49.6 acres zoned C-3, R-6 and A-1 PMU 
(Community Business District, Multi-Family Residential District and Agricultural 
District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) (PC 2018-2459).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Development Text Amendment to Ordinance 08-113 
for Stavroff Land Development Belmont Place (Sub-Area A) for 102 single family 
lots and 5 commercial out lots located north of Peachblow Road and east of Glenn 
Parkway on approximately 49.6 acres zoned C-3, R-6 and A-1 PMU (Community 
Business District, Multi-Family Residential District and Agricultural District with 
a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District), is hereby confirmed, approved, and 
accepted with the following condition that: 
 

1. Any change of land use and/or bulk and setback requirements shall 
require conformance to all provisions of the Development Text and any 
conditions of approval. 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 



 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 20    DATE: 10/22/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-95    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR 
STAVROFF LAND DEVELOPMENT FOR BELMONT PLACE (SUB-AREA A) FOR 
102 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS AND 5 COMMERCIAL OUT LOTS LOCATED NORTH 
OF PEACHBLOW ROAD AND EAST OF GLENN PARKWAY ON 
APPROXIMATELY 49.6 ACRES ZONED C-3, R-6 AND A-1 PMU (COMMUNITY 
BUSINESS DISTRICT, MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT AND 
AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT).  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1129.04 Procedures of the Codified 
Ordinances. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 7-0 on October 17, 
2018.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  



POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-95 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A PRELIMINARY 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR STAVROFF LAND 
DEVELOPMENT FOR BELMONT PLACE (SUB-AREA A) 
FOR 102 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS AND 5 COMMERCIAL 
OUT LOTS LOCATED NORTH OF PEACHBLOW ROAD 
AND EAST OF GLENN PARKWAY ON APPROXIMATELY 
49.6 ACRES ZONED C-3, R-6 AND A-1 PMU 
(COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT, MULTI-FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT AND AGRICULTURAL 
DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT).  
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of October 17, 2018 
recommended approval of a Preliminary Development Plan for Stavroff Land 
Development for Belmont Place (Sub-Area A) for 102 single family lots and 5 
commercial out lots located north of Peachblow Road and east of Glenn Parkway 
on approximately 49.6 acres zoned C-3, R-6 and A-1 PMU (Community Business 
District, Multi-Family Residential District and Agricultural District with a Planned 
Mixed Use Overlay District) (PC 2018-2460).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Preliminary Development Plan for Stavroff Land 
Development for Belmont Place (Sub-Area A) for 102 single family lots and 5 
commercial out lots located north of Peachblow Road and east of Glenn Parkway 
on approximately 49.6 acres zoned C-3, R-6 and A-1 PMU (Community Business 
District, Multi-Family Residential District and Agricultural District with a Planned 
Mixed Use Overlay District), is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted with the 
following conditions that: 
 

1. The Applicant needs to obtain final engineering approvals, including any 
storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the 
Engineering and Utilities Departments. All comments regarding the 
layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject to 
modification or change based on the final technical review by the 
Engineering Department. 

2. The private street located east of the commercial out lots shall be 
constructed to public standards. 

3. The off-site stormwater improvements shall comply with the minimum 
City and County regulations. 



4. The lots and houses shall comply with the minimum bulk and setback 
requirements in the approved development text. 

5. The proposed detention ponds shall achieve compliance with the 
minimum engineering requirements. 

6. The single family houses shall comply with the minimum architectural 
standards in the approved development text and per applicable sections 
of the current zoning code. 

7. The commercial buildings on the out lots shall achieve compliance with 
the development text and applicable sections of the current zoning code. 

8. In Reserve B, the developer shall construct overlapped continuous 4 to 6 
foot high mounds with landscaping providing a buffer adjacent to the 
commercial out lots to the west and shall construct an intermittent 4-6 
high mound with landscaping and an intermittent three rail fence along 
Peachblow Road to the south per the submitted plan. 

9. All evergreen trees shall be a minimum 6 foot high at installation and the 
deciduous trees shall be a minimum 1.75 inch caliper. The maintenance 
of the reserve areas and the mounding and associated landscaping shall 
be the responsibility of the Homeowners Association 

10. Any landscape plans shall be submitted and approved by the Shade Tree 
Commission. 

11. Any tree removal and/or replacement requirements shall achieve 
compliance with Chapter 1168 Tree Preservation Regulations and shall 
be required prior to Final Subdivision Plat approvals for each section of 
the residential development and prior to the Final Development Plan 
approval for each commercial out lot. 

12. The proposed bike path shall be extend west to Glenn Parkway along 
Peachblow Road (through commercial out lot 4) and shall be extended 
north and west through Reserve A to Glenn Parkway to connect to the 
City bike path network.  In addition, the bike path shall be extended 
from Section 1 of Belmont Place Subdivision from the current terminus 
at McNamara Loop across Crownover Way along the northern portion of 
Reserve B (in place of a sidewalk in this area) to the proposed bike path 
location on the submitted plans. 

13. All lighting plans shall achieve compliance with the approved 
development text and current zoning code and be approved by the Chief 
Building Office during the Final Subdivision Plat process for the 
residential development and Final Development Plan process for the 
commercial out lots. 

14. The entrance ground sign for Belmont Place Subdivision along Glenn 
Parkway shall have a Delaware blue vein limestone base or equivalent as 
approved by staff. 

15. Any signage for the commercial out lots shall achieve compliance with 
the approved development text and current zoning code.  



16. The existing vacant single family houses on commercial out lot 5 shall be 
demolished prior to building permit approval for any residential or 
commercial building within Sub-Area A.  

17. These sections of the Belmont Place Subdivision shall be placed in the 
Delaware South New Community Authority prior to issuance of building 
permits, is located within the Evans Residential TIF district, is located 
within the Southern Point Commercial TIF District and is subject to the 
South East Highland Sanitary Sewer additional capacity charge of 
$3,200 per dwelling unit. 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  21    DATE: 10/22/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-96    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A PRELIMINARY SUBDIVISION PLAT FOR 
STAVROFF LAND DEVELOPMENT FOR BELMONT PLACE (SUB-AREA A) FOR 
102 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS AND 5 COMMERCIAL OUT LOTS LOCATED NORTH 
OF PEACHBLOW ROAD AND EAST OF GLENN PARKWAY ON 
APPROXIMATELY 49.6 ACRES ZONED C-3, R-6 AND A-1 PMU (COMMUNITY 
BUSINESS DISTRICT, MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT AND 
AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT).  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1111 Subdivision Regulations of the 
zoning code. 
 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 7-0 on October 17, 
2018.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 



  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-96 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A PRELIMINARY 
SUBDIVISION PLAT FOR STAVROFF LAND 
DEVELOPMENT FOR BELMONT PLACE (SUB-AREA A) 
FOR 102 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS AND 5 COMMERCIAL 
OUT LOTS LOCATED NORTH OF PEACHBLOW ROAD 
AND EAST OF GLENN PARKWAY ON APPROXIMATELY 
49.6 ACRES ZONED C-3, R-6 AND A-1 PMU 
(COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT, MULTI-FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT AND AGRICULTURAL 
DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT).  
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of October 17, 2018 
recommended approval of a Preliminary Subdivision Plat for Stavroff Land 
Development for Belmont Place (Sub-Area A) for 102 single family lots and 5 
commercial out lots located north of Peachblow Road and east of Glenn Parkway 
on approximately 49.6 acres zoned C-3, R-6 and A-1 PMU (Community Business 
District, Multi-Family Residential District and Agricultural District with a Planned 
Mixed Use Overlay District) (PC 2018-2461).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Preliminary Subdivision Plat for Stavroff Land 
Development for Belmont Place (Sub-Area A) for 102 single family lots and 5 
commercial out lots located north of Peachblow Road and east of Glenn Parkway 
on approximately 49.6 acres zoned C-3, R-6 and A-1 PMU (Community Business 
District, Multi-Family Residential District and Agricultural District with a Planned 
Mixed Use Overlay District), is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted with the 
following conditions that: 
 

1. The Applicant needs to obtain final engineering approvals, including any 
storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the 
Engineering and Utilities Departments. All comments regarding the 
layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject to 
modification or change based on the final technical review by the 
Engineering Department. 

2. The private street located east of the commercial out lots shall be 
constructed to public standards. 

3. The off-site stormwater improvements shall comply with the minimum 
City and County regulations. 



4. The lots and houses shall comply with the minimum bulk and setback 
requirements in the approved development text. 

5. The proposed detention ponds shall achieve compliance with the 
minimum engineering requirements. 

6. The single family houses shall comply with the minimum architectural 
standards in the approved development text and per applicable sections 
of the current zoning code. 

7. The commercial buildings on the out lots shall achieve compliance with 
the development text and applicable sections of the current zoning code. 

8. In Reserve B, the developer shall construct overlapped continuous 4 to 6 
foot high mounds with landscaping providing a buffer adjacent to the 
commercial out lots to the west and shall construct an intermittent 4-6 
high mound with landscaping and an intermittent three rail fence along 
Peachblow Road to the south per the submitted plan. 

9. All evergreen trees shall be a minimum 6 foot high at installation and the 
deciduous trees shall be a minimum 1.75 inch caliper. The maintenance 
of the reserve areas and the mounding and associated landscaping shall 
be the responsibility of the Homeowners Association 

10. Any landscape plans shall be submitted and approved by the Shade Tree 
Commission. 

11. Any tree removal and/or replacement requirements shall achieve 
compliance with Chapter 1168 Tree Preservation Regulations and shall 
be required prior to Final Subdivision Plat approvals for each section of 
the residential development and prior to the Final Development Plan 
approval for each commercial out lot. 

12. The proposed bike path shall be extend west to Glenn Parkway along 
Peachblow Road (through commercial out lot 4) and shall be extended 
north and west through Reserve A to Glenn Parkway to connect to the 
City bike path network.  In addition, the bike path shall be extended 
from Section 1 of Belmont Place Subdivision from the current terminus 
at McNamara Loop across Crownover Way along the northern portion of 
Reserve B (in place of a sidewalk in this area) to the proposed bike path 
location on the submitted plans. 

13. All lighting plans shall achieve compliance with the approved 
development text and current zoning code and be approved by the Chief 
Building Office during the Final Subdivision Plat process for the 
residential development and Final Development Plan process for the 
commercial out lots. 

14. The entrance ground sign for Belmont Place Subdivision along Glenn 
Parkway shall have a Delaware blue vein limestone base or equivalent as 
approved by staff. 

15. Any signage for the commercial out lots shall achieve compliance with 
the approved development text and current zoning code.  



16. The existing vacant single family houses on commercial out lot 5 shall be 
demolished prior to building permit approval for any residential or 
commercial building within Sub-Area A.  

17. These sections of the Belmont Place Subdivision shall be placed in the 
Delaware South New Community Authority prior to issuance of building 
permits, is located within the Evans Residential TIF district, is located 
within the Southern Point Commercial TIF District and is subject to the 
South East Highland Sanitary Sewer additional capacity charge of 
$3,200 per dwelling unit. 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 

























































































































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  22    DATE: 10/22/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-97    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR TIM COLATRUGLIO APPROVING A FINAL 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR RIVER STREET BUSINESS PARK ENCOMPASSING 
APPROXIMATELY 2.94 ACRES (13 PROPERTIES) LOCATED AT 45 RIVER 
STREET AND ZONED B-3 AND R-4 PMU (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT 
AND MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED 
USE OVERLAY DISTRICT).  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached report 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1129.05 Final Development Plan   
requirements of the zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on October 17, 2018. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-97 
 
AN ORDINANCE FOR TIM COLATRUGLIO APPROVING A 
FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR RIVER STREET 
BUSINESS PARK ENCOMPASSING APPROXIMATELY 
2.94 ACRES (13 PROPERTIES) LOCATED AT 45 RIVER 
STREET AND ZONED B-3 AND R-4 PMU (COMMUNITY 
BUSINESS DISTRICT AND MEDIUM DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE 
OVERLAY DISTRICT).  
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on October 17, 2018 
recommended approval of a Final Development Plan for Tim Colatruglio for River 
Street Business Park encompassing approximately 2.94 acres (13 properties) 
located at 45 River Street and zoned B-3 and R-4 PMU (Community Business 
District and Medium Density Residential District with a Planned Mixed Use 
Overlay District) (PC Case 2018-2493).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Final Development Plan for Tim Colatruglio for River 
Street Business Park encompassing approximately 2.94 acres (13 properties) 
located at 45 River Street and zoned B-3 and R-4 PMU (Community Business 
District and Medium Density Residential District with a Planned Mixed Use 
Overlay District)is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted with the following 
conditions that: 

 
1. The applicant has submitted engineering drawings for the site that shall be 

approved when the Final Development Plan is approved. 
2. There shall be a minimum of 60 parking spaces to accommodate the mix of 

commercial, office and warehouse land uses. 
3. A guard rail on the west side of River Street adjacent to the curbs cuts shall 

be installed per engineering requirements for safety reasons. 
4. A sidewalk on the east side of River Street along the frontage of the 

development to the southern curb cut shall be installed per engineering 
requirements. 

5. The existing building and the new buildings shall achieve compliance with 
the design standards of the approved development text or as approved per 
the Final Development Plan. 



6. Six foot high evergreen trees at installation shall be planted 20 feet on 
center to supplement the existing trees to form a continuous buffer shall 
adjacent to the residential houses to the north. 

7. Foundation landscaping shall be required for each building. 
8. The owner shall be required to replant, permanently preserve treed area 

and/or pay a tree replacement fee preliminary calculated of $19,200 per the 
submitted tree survey to achieve compliance with Chapter 1168 Tree 
Preservation Regulations along with the approved development text. 

9. Any landscape plans shall be reviewed and approved by the Shade Tree 
Commission. 

10. The lighting plan was approved by the Chief Building Official on March 14, 
2018. In lieu of street lights, site lighting is being provided such that 
appropriate illumination of River Street is provided 

11. The thirteen parcels shall be consolidated after the Alley Vacation and Final 
Development Plan approval but prior to the occupancy permit of the first 
new building. 

12. The applicant shall grant a temporary easement to allow the alley to the 
north to be located on the owner’s property until the alley is paved within 
its right-of-way by the City.   

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  23    DATE: 10/22/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-98    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       November 12, 2018 at 7:45 p.m. 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR TIM COLATRUGLIO APPROVING AN ALLEY VACATION 
FOR RIVER STREET BUSINESS PARK ENCOMPASSING APPROXIMATELY 2.94 
ACRES (13 PROPERTIES) LOCATED AT 45 RIVER STREET AND ZONED B-3 
AND R-4 PMU (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT AND MEDIUM DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT).  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached report 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 910 Street and Alley Vacations of the 
codified ordinances.  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on October 17, 2018. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 



David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-98 
 
AN ORDINANCE FOR TIM COLATRUGLIO APPROVING 
AN ALLEY VACATION FOR RIVER STREET BUSINESS 
PARK ENCOMPASSING APPROXIMATELY 2.94 ACRES 
(13 PROPERTIES) LOCATED AT 45 RIVER STREET AND 
ZONED B-3 AND R-4 PMU (COMMUNITY BUSINESS 
DISTRICT AND MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL 
DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT). 
 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on October 17, 2018 
recommended approval of an Alley Vacation for Tim Colatruglio for River Street 
Business Park encompassing approximately 2.94 acres (13 properties) located at 
45 River Street and zoned B-3 and R-4 PMU (Community Business District and 
Medium Density Residential District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) 
(PC Case 2018-2494).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Alley Vacation for Tim Colatruglio for River Street 
Business Park encompassing approximately 2.94 acres (13 properties) located at 
45 River Street and zoned B-3 and R-4 PMU (Community Business District and 
Medium Density Residential District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District)is 
hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted with the following condition that: 
 
1. The owner shall record the alley vacation plat at the county recorder’s office. 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 

































































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  24    DATE: 10/22/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-99    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       November 12, 2018 at 8:00 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR MANOS PROPERTIES FOR APPROVAL OF A 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT ALLOWING THE WESLEYAN INN AT 235 WEST 
WILLIAM STREET ON APPROXIMATELY 0.72 ACRES ZONED PO/I (PLANNED 
OFFICE/INSTITUTIONAL).  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1148 Conditional Use Regulations of the 
zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 6-1 on October 17, 
2018. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-99 
 
AN ORDINANCE FOR MANOS PROPERTIES FOR 
APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 
ALLOWING THE WESLEYAN INN AT 235 WEST WILLIAM 
STREET ON APPROXIMATELY 0.72 ACRES ZONED PO/I 
(PLANNED OFFICE/INSTITUTIONAL).  
 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on October 17, 2018 
recommended approval of a Conditional Use Permit allowing The Wesleyan Inn at 
235 West William Street on approximately 0.72 acres zoned PO/I (Planned 
Office/Institutional) (2018-2462). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Conditional Use Permit allowing The Wesleyan Inn at 
235 West William Street on approximately 0.72 acres zoned PO/I (Planned 
Office/Institutional), is hereby confirmed, approved and accepted with the 
following conditions that: 
 

1. The subject building shall be only used as an Inn and shall not exceed 43 
rooms. 

2. The building and site shall be developed per the any approved Preliminary 
and Final Development Plan conditions. 
 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 25     DATE: 10/22/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-100   RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR MANOS PROPERTIES FOR APPROVAL OF A 
PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR THE WESLEYAN INN AT 235 WEST 
WILLIAM STREET ON APPROXIMATELY 0.72 ACRES ZONED PO/I (PLANNED 
OFFICE/INSTITUTIONAL).   
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1129.04 Procedures of the Codified 
Ordinances. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 6-1 on October 17, 
2018. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-100 
 
AN ORDINANCE FOR MANOS PROPERTIES FOR 
APPROVAL OF A PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
FOR THE WESLEYAN INN AT 235 WEST WILLIAM 
STREET ON APPROXIMATELY 0.72 ACRES ZONED PO/I 
(PLANNED OFFICE/INSTITUTIONAL).   
 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on October 17, 2018 
recommended approval of a Preliminary Development Plan for The Wesleyan Inn 
at 235 West William Street on approximately 0.72 acres zoned PO/I (Planned 
Office/Institutional) (2018-2462). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Preliminary Development Plan for The Wesleyan Inn 
at 235 West William Street on approximately 0.72 acres zoned PO/I (Planned 
Office/Institutional), is hereby confirmed, approved and accepted with the 
following conditions that: 
 

1. The applicant needs to obtain engineering approvals, including any storm 
water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the Engineering 
and Utilities Departments.  All comments regarding the layout and details of 
the project are preliminary and subject to modification or change based on 
the final technical review by the Engineering Department once a complete 
plan set is submitted for review. 

2. The ingress to the site at the easternmost curb cut shall include a two-way 
left turn lane on West William Street, west of the existing dedicated left turn 
lane to Elizabeth Street, in order to separate left turning vehicles on West 
William Street from westbound through traffic. The two-way left turn lane 
shall be designed in accordance with City standards and shall be approved 
by the City Engineer with all required roadway widening being on the south 
side of the street and not impacting parking on the north side of the street. 
All necessary associated improvements including, but not limited to, 
sidewalk and utility pole relocations shall be made by the developer. 

3. Because no public storm sewer exists adjacent to the site, a storm sewer 
extension shall be required to be designed and constructed by the 
developer.  Design of the storm sewer and any associated roadway 
restoration shall need to be approved by the Public Works Department and 
Public Utilities Department.   



4. An emergency access point shall be required on the southeastern portion of 
the site adjacent to the Ohio Wesleyan parking lot that is accessed off Oak 
Hill Avenue. An executed agreement by the subject property owner and Ohio 
Wesleyan University shall be recorded at the County prior to final 
occupancy. The exact type of connection and barrier shall be determined 
during the Final Development Plan approval process. 

5. The cantilevered building shall achieve compliance with the minimum Fire 
Department clearance requirements. 

6. Any mechanical equipment shall be screened from public view. 
7. The number of hotel rooms shall not exceed 43 rooms. 

8. The number of required parking spaces shall be 45 or in accordance with 
the approved Final Development Plan. Plan. 

9. The proposed hotel building shall achieve compliance with the City design 
standards per the Final Development Plan as approved by staff.  

10. Any exposed portion of a retaining wall(s) shall be faced with Delaware 
blue vein limestone or equivalent as approved by staff. 

11. The applicant shall have to replace the removed trees with the same total 
caliper inches of trees or make a payment in lieu of replacement of $20,300 
($100 per caliper inch x 203 caliper inches)  or a combination of both to 
achieve compliance with Chapter 1168 Tree Preservation Regulations prior 
to construction drawing approval.  

12. Any street trees or other on-site trees damaged by construction shall be 
replaced. 

13. A six foot high solid wood fence shall be located along the southern 
property line of the subject site and the western property line of 239 West 
William Street to screen the adjacent uses. The landscaping shall be on the 
adjacent residential side of the fence along the west and south property 
lines 

14. Any landscape plans shall be reviewed and approved by the Shade Tree 
Commission. 

15. A lighting plan shall be documented in the Final Development Plan that 
achieves compliance with the minimum zoning requirements and shall be 
reviewed and approved by the Chief Building Official. 

16. Any signage shall be documented on the Final Development Plan and shall 
achieve compliance with the approved development text and the adopted 
Gateways and Corridor Plan. 

17. The entire development shall achieve compliance with the minimum 
engineering, public works and fire department requirements.  
 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 



this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  26    DATE:  10/22/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-101   RESOLUTION NO:   
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Jackie Walker, Assistant City Manager 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING THE 2018 APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE 
TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL FUNDING FOR A LAWSUIT SETTLEMENT, AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
The City appropriates funds for risk management including insurance and 
judgements and settlements.    Staff determined that it is in the best interest of 
the City of Delaware to pay a settlement amount in order to protect the City’s 
insurance premium status and avoid devoting extensive resources to litigating 
a case. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED:  
No appropriation is included in the 2018 budget.  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S):  
The $50,000 will be used to pay the settlement. 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 



PRESENTER(S):  
Jackie Walker, Assistant City Manager 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
 
ATTACHMENT(S)  
None 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 18-101 
 
 AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING THE 2018 

APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE 
ADDITIONAL FUNDING FOR A LAWSUIT 
SETTLEMENT, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.   

 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware appropriates funding for all risk costs; 

and 
 
WHEREAS, City Council has directed staff to settle an anticipated 

lawsuit; and  
 
WHEREAS, City staff believes that settling the anticipated lawsuit will 

save money through additional premiums and resources devoted to defending 
the case; and  

 
WHEREAS, a supplemental appropriation to the 2018 budget will be 

necessary to fund the line item necessary to pay the costs related to the 
settlement. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF DELAWARE, OHIO THAT: 
 
 SECTION 1. That there is hereby appropriated from the unencumbered 
balance of the General Fund of $50,000 increasing the Risk Management 
Judgement line item 101-0033-5281. 

 
SECTION 2. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
SECTION 3.  EMERGENCY CLAUSE: That this ordinance is hereby 

declared to be an emergency measure, necessary to provide for the public 
peace, property, health, safety, welfare of the City.  The emergency clause is 
necessary in order to expeditiously settle the aforementioned case.   As such, 
this ordinance will be in full force immediately upon its passage. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 

 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 

 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  27    DATE: 10/22/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-102   RESOLUTION NO:  
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING THE 2018 APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE 
TO ESTABLISH FUNDING FOR THE INSTALLATION OF A TRAFFIC SIGNAL AT 
THE INTERSECTION OF US 23 AND GLENN PARKWAY-PEACHBLOW ROAD 
AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
In 2010, the City re-aligned Peachblow Road and Winter Road at US 23 and 
introduced the intersection of Glenn Parkway and US 23.  Technically, Glenn 
Parkway is also Peachblow Road at the intersection with US 23.  The project 
was built with State and Federal dollars in partnership with ODOT, and it 
established a new southern gateway into the City of Delaware.  The intersection 
was built immediately outside of the City limits, however, it was critical for the 
City to remain in control of the alignment of Glenn Parkway, hence the reason 
the City took the lead position on the project.  The design for the 2010 project 
did account for the future installation of a mast arm signal at the new 23 & 
Glenn Parkway intersection.  However, there was not enough side street traffic 
in 2010 to warrant the signal being installed.  Therefore, only underground 
conduits were installed for the future signal.  The warrant for a signal was re-
visited in 2017 and now it is time to finish the design and installation of the 
signal.  The Public Works Department has identified partners – ODOT, 
Delaware County - to assist in designing and constructing this signal in time 
for the expanded Delaware Area Career Center (DACC) campus opening in 



August of 2019.  The following is an outline of how the collaborative effort will 
unfold: 
 

• ODOT will provide design plans for the completion of the mast-arm 
installation early this month 

• City will bid the project in October of 2018 and oversee construction: 
o Foundations will  be installed before Winter 2018 
o Mast-arms will be manufactured and painted during the Winter of 

2018 
o Signal will be erected in the Spring of 2019; 

• ODOT to provide (lightly) used traffic signal equipment in order to reduce 
the overall cost of the project by an estimated $50,000; 

• Delaware County to contribute $50,000 towards the project pending a 
Cooperation Agreement being approved; 

• ODOT to issue a permit to construct based on traffic analysis already in 
place; 

• ODOT will own/maintain the signal after construction.  If the 
intersection is annexed into the City in the future, this arrangement may 
change. 

 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
This project was not included in the City’s Capital Improvement Plan, nor the 
2018 Budget. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
None 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
A conservative preliminary estimate for the items to be bid out to the 
contracting community is $200,000, which would result in a City obligation of 
$150,000 considering a Delaware County contribution of $50,000.  The City 
has received a commitment from DACC to split this $150,000 cost.  City costs 
are anticipated to be funded by the Southern New Community Authority.  
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
None 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval at 3rd Reading 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
None 



ORDINANCE NO. 18-102 
 
AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING THE 2018 
APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE TO ESTABLISH 
FUNDING FOR THE INSTALLATION OF A TRAFFIC 
SIGNAL AT THE INTERSECTION OF US 23 AND 
GLENN PARKWAY-PEACHBLOW ROAD AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.     

 
WHEREAS, in 2010, the City constructed the intersection of US 23 and 

Glenn Parkway-Peachblow Road, establishing a new southern gateway to the 
City; and 

 
WHEREAS, the 2010 project included components of a mast-arm traffic 

signal installation along US 23 knowing the signal would eventually be 
warranted; and  

 
WHEREAS, the mast-arm traffic signal is now warranted pending the 

opening of the expanded Delaware Area Career Center; and   
 
WHEREAS, a supplemental appropriation is required to provide the 

funding necessary to install a mast-arm traffic signal.   
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 

SECTION 1. That there is hereby appropriated from the unencumbered 
balance of the Glenn Road South Construction Fund $200,000.00 increasing 
the following account: 

 
496-4960-5551   Glenn Road South Construction Fund 
 

SECTION 2. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.  

 
SECTION 3.  EMERGENCY CLAUSE.  That this ordinance is hereby 

declared to be an emergency measure necessary to provide for the public 
peace, safety, health and welfare of the City and for the further reason to 
provide for the timely start of the traffic signal safety improvement, and as 
such will be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage. 
 
 



 
 
 
VOTE ON EMERGENCY CLAUSE:  YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 

 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:  YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  28    DATE: 10/22/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 18-57 
 
READING:  FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING:  NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXTENSION OF THE SCHOOL ZONE FOR 
SCHULTZ ELEMENTARY SCHOOL TO INCLUDE ROCK CREEK DRIVE NORTH 
AND SOUTH OF WILLOW RUN LANE, THE INSTALLATION OF SCHOOL ZONE 
FLASHERS ON ROCK CREEK DRIVE AND APPLEGATE LANE, AND THE 
INSTALLATION OF RECTANGULAR RAPID FLASHING BEACONS (RRFB’S) AT 
THE CROSSWALK ON ROCK CREEK DRIVE AT WILLOW RUN LANE.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
Schultz Elementary School Principal, Travis Woodworth, voiced concerns of the 
safety of students utilizing the crosswalk on Rock Creek Drive at Willow Run 
Lane and requested a multi-way stop at the intersection.  He discussed there 
have been near misses of cars traveling down Rock Creek Drive and not 
slowing/yielding to pedestrians at the intersection.  Staff conducted a multi-
way stop warrant analysis and found that a multi-way stop was not warranted 
based on the vehicular traffic volumes, but did recommend RRFB’s be installed 
on Rock Creek Drive at Willow Run Lane to enhance the safety for 
students/pedestrians.  After further discussion at the Parking and Safety 
Committee meeting on October 15, 2018, the extension of the School Zone to 
include Rock Creek Drive north and south of Willow Run Lane was also 
recommended to enhance student safety by regulating a lower speed near and 
around the school during arrival and dismissal times.  With the extension 
school zone, it was also recommended that school zone flashers be installed on 
Rock Creek Drive north and south of Willow Run Lane and on Applegate Lane 



to clearly communicate to drivers when they are entering and are within an 
active school zone.  Schultz Elementary School is currently the only elementary 
school without school zone flashers. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
The extension of a school zone and placement of regulatory signage requires 
City Council authorization for permanent enforcement. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
The action is being taken as a result of the Parking and Safety Committee 
recommendation at the October 15, 2018 meeting. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
The cost of materials to install the school zone flashers at three (3) locations 
and RRFB’s at one (1) intersection is estimated at $40,000.00. A supplemental 
appropriation to the SMR Traffic Operations account will be required to fund 
the cost of materials, as this expenditure was not budgeted for in 2018.  The 
installation of all devices will be performed by in-house staff.  A request has 
been made to the superintendent of schools to split the cost of this project, 
since these improvements are, in part, a result of the new traffic design 
installed when the addition was constructed last year.   
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
None 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Exhibit A - Preliminary Location Map (subject to change pending field work) 
Engineer’s Analysis Memo (10/5/18) 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 18-57 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXTENSION OF 
THE SCHOOL ZONE FOR SCHULTZ ELEMENTARY 
SCHOOL TO INCLUDE ROCK CREEK DRIVE NORTH 
AND SOUTH OF WILLOW RUN LANE, THE 
INSTALLATION OF SCHOOL ZONE FLASHERS ON 
ROCK CREEK DRIVE AND APPLEGATE LANE, AND 
THE INSTALLATION OF RECTANGULAR RAPID 
FLASHING BEACONS (RRFB’S) AT THE CROSSWALK 
ON ROCK CREEK DRIVE AT WILLOW RUN LANE. 
 

WHEREAS, the improvements have been requested so as to provide for 
enhanced safety on Rock Creek Drive and Willow Run Lane for school aged 
pedestrians attending Schultz Elementary School; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Parking and Safety Committee has endorsed the 
extension of the School Zone, installation of School Zone Flashers, and 
installation RRFB’s for Schultz Elementary School by a 2-0 vote at the October 
15, 2018 meeting. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL FOR THE CITY 
OF DELAWARE, STATE OF OHIO: 
 

SECTION 1.  The School Zone will be extended to include Rock Creek 
Drive north and south of Willow Run Lane for Schultz Elementary School.  

 
SECTION 2.  School Zone Flashers will be installed on Rock Creek Drive 

and Applegate Lane for Schultz Elementary School. 
 
SECTION 3.  RRFB’s will be installed for the crosswalk on Rock Creek 

Drive at Willow Run Lane.  
 
SECTION 4. That this resolution shall take effect and be in force 

immediately after its passage. 
 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS___ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 



Exhibit A - Schultz Elementary School 
School Zone Extention
School Zone Flasher Locations
RRFB Locations 

Legend    

RRFB

SCHOOL FLASHER

600 ft

N

➤➤

N
© 2018 Google

© 2018 Google

© 2018 Google



 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer 

FROM:    Matthew B. Weber, P.E., Deputy City Engineer 

Jessica Ormeroid, PE, PTOE, Project Engineer II 
 

DATE:   10/5/18 

 
RE: Rock Creek Drive & Willow Run Lane Multi-Way Stop Analysis 

 

Below, please find the review of the existing conditions at the intersection of Rock Creek Drive and Willow 

Run Lane with regard to a multi-way stop sign warrant analysis as established by the Ohio Manual of Uniform 

Traffic Control Devices (OMUTCD), 2012 Edition. 

The following criteria should be considered in the engineering study for a multi-way stop sign installation: 

A.  Where traffic control signals are justified, the multi-way stop is an interim measure that can be installed 
quickly to control traffic while arrangements are being made for the installation of the traffic control 
signal. 

B.  Five or more reported crashes in a 12-month period that are susceptible to correction by a multi-way 
stop installation.  Such crashes include right-turn and left-turn collisions as well as right-angle collisions. 

C. Minimum Volumes: 
1. The vehicular volume entering the intersection from the major street approaches (total of both 

approaches) averages at least 300 vehicles per hour of any 8 hours of an average day, and 
2. The combined vehicular, pedestrian, and bicycle volume entering the intersection from the 

minor street approaches (total of both approaches) averages at least 200 units per hour for the 
same 8 hours, with an average delay to the minor street vehicular traffic of at least 30 seconds 
per vehicle during the highest hour, but 

3. If the 85th percentile approach speed of the major street traffic exceeds 40 mph, the minimum 
vehicular volume warrants are 70 percent of the values provided in Items 1 and 2. 

D. Where no single criterion is satisfied, but where the Criteria B, C.1, and C.2 are all satisfied to 80 percent 

of the minimum values.  Criterion C.3 is excluded from this condition. 
 

Option: 

Other criteria that may be considered in an engineering study include: 

A. The need to control left turn conflicts; 
B. The need to control vehicle/pedestrian conflicts near locations that generate high pedestrian volumes; 
C. Locations where a road user, after stopping, cannot see conflicting traffic and is not able to reasonably 

safely negotiate the intersection unless conflicting cross traffic is also required to stop, and 
D. An intersection of two residential neighborhood collector (through) streets of similar design and 

operating characteristics where multi-way stop control would improve traffic operational characteristics 
of the intersection. 
 

 

 



 

 

 

Summary of Results based on above criteria: 

A. Based on 24-hour counts taken on 9/26/18 for Rock Creek Drive and Willow Run Lane, this intersection 
does not meet any of the signal warrants outlined in Chapter 4C of the OMUTCD. 

B. Per ODOT Crash Analytics from 2014 to current, there have not be any intersection related accidents. 
C. Minimum Volumes:  

1. Based on 24-hour count taken 9/26/18, Rock Creek Drive does not meet this condition for 8-
hours out of the day.  See attached counts. 

2. Based on the westbound 24-hour count taken 9/26/18, Willow Run Lane does not meet this 
condition for any hours of the day.  See attached counts. 

3. Based on the stealth speed data obtained on 9/26/18 to 9/28/18, the 85th percentile speed 
is 30 mph (see attached speed data).  This does not exceed 40 mph so this section will not 
apply to this intersection. 

D. Based on the accident history and 24-hour count data for both roadways, B, C.1 and C.2 are not 
satisfied at 80 percent of the minimum values. 
 

Option: 

A. There have not been any intersection related accidents at this intersection over the past 3-years. 
B. There have not been any pedestrian related accidents at this intersection, but there is potential for 

vehicle/pedestrian conflicts at this intersection given that there are school aged pedestrians that 
frequent this intersection on school days during the arrival and dismissal times to Schultz 
Elementary School. 

C. There is a clear line of sight for traffic turning off of Willow Run Lane onto Rock Creek Drive. 
D. Based on the 24-hour traffic counts, these two roadways are both classified as local roadways.  Rock 

Creek Drive has an ADT of 828 and Willow Run Lane an ADT of 581.   
 

Based on the above summary of results, a multi-way stop at the Rock Creek Drive and Willow Run Lane is not 

warranted by traffic volumes nor is it recommended.  Given the pedestrian volumes (greater than 10 

pedestrians/hour) of school aged students that cross Rock Creek Drive during the arrival and dismissal times 

of Schultz Elementary School and there is potential for vehicle/pedestrian conflict, pedestrian crossing 

enhancements are recommended for Rock Creek Drive.  Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacon (RRFB) devices 

would be an appropriate safety countermeasure for this location given it can be activated when pedestrian 

demand is present, and only affect traffic flow on Rock Creek Drive as it is needed. When such devices are 

installed, an education program shall be implemented by the school on the proper operation and use of these 

devices.  The estimated costs to install these units utilizing a contractor is approximately $15,000. 

 

 

 

 



Street:

Date:

Location:

Date Time Northbound Southbound Total

9/26/2018 16:00 36 23 59

9/26/2018 17:00 42 24 66

9/26/2018 18:00 42 16 58

9/26/2018 19:00 25 16 41

9/26/2018 20:00 26 4 30

9/26/2018 21:00 23 6 29

9/26/2018 22:00 4 6 10 `

9/26/2018 23:00 4 1 5

9/27/2018 0:00 2 3 5

9/27/2018 1:00 2 0 2

9/27/2018 2:00 0 0 0

9/27/2018 3:00 1 0 1

9/27/2018 4:00 3 5 8

9/27/2018 5:00 4 5 9

9/27/2018 6:00 11 29 40

9/27/2018 7:00 26 41 67

9/27/2018 8:00 48 53 101

9/27/2018 9:00 15 25 40

9/27/2018 10:00 11 20 31

9/27/2018 11:00 20 17 37

9/27/2018 12:00 19 11 30

9/27/2018 13:00 25 18 43

9/27/2018 14:00 40 27 67

9/27/2018 15:00 47 38 85

9/27/2018 16:00 40 28 68

9/27/2018 17:00 38 31 69

9/27/2018 18:00 24 21 45

9/27/2018 19:00 29 20 49

9/27/2018 20:00 21 8 29

9/27/2018 21:00 16 3 19

9/27/2018 22:00 9 4 13

9/27/2018 23:00 8 5 13

9/28/2018 0:00 2 3 5

9/28/2018 1:00 0 0 0

9/28/2018 2:00 0 1 1

9/28/2018 3:00 1 0 1

9/28/2018 4:00 0 4 4

9/28/2018 5:00 3 12 15

9/28/2018 6:00 8 34 42

9/28/2018 7:00 30 40 70

9/28/2018 8:00 36 55 91

9/28/2018 9:00 26 25 51

438 390 828 24 Hr ADT

173 Rock Creek

9/26/2018

just north of Willow Run intersection



Street:

Date:

Location:

Date Time Eastbound Westbound Total

9/26/2018 16:00 18 21 39

9/26/2018 17:00 17 17 34

9/26/2018 18:00 6 7 13

9/26/2018 19:00 3 7 10

9/26/2018 20:00 2 5 7

9/26/2018 21:00 6 1 7

9/26/2018 22:00 0 1 1 `

9/26/2018 23:00 1 1 2

9/27/2018 0:00 0 0 0

9/27/2018 1:00 0 0 0

9/27/2018 2:00 0 0 0

9/27/2018 3:00 0 0 0

9/27/2018 4:00 0 2 2

9/27/2018 5:00 0 1 1

9/27/2018 6:00 19 2 21

9/27/2018 7:00 44 12 56

9/27/2018 8:00 102 72 174

9/27/2018 9:00 7 10 17

9/27/2018 10:00 8 12 20

9/27/2018 11:00 11 6 17

9/27/2018 12:00 10 5 15

9/27/2018 13:00 6 4 10

9/27/2018 14:00 30 12 42

9/27/2018 15:00 34 72 106

9/27/2018 16:00 14 20 34

9/27/2018 17:00 15 20 35

9/27/2018 18:00 5 8 13

9/27/2018 19:00 8 9 17

9/27/2018 20:00 3 3 6

9/27/2018 21:00 3 1 4

9/27/2018 22:00 2 2 4

9/27/2018 23:00 1 0 1

9/28/2018 0:00 1 0 1

9/28/2018 1:00 0 0 0

9/28/2018 2:00 0 0 0

9/28/2018 3:00 0 0 0

9/28/2018 4:00 0 0 0

9/28/2018 5:00 0 1 1

9/28/2018 6:00 13 3 16

9/28/2018 7:00 56 16 72

9/28/2018 8:00 107 88 195

9/28/2018 9:00 14 10 24

323 258 581 24 Hr ADT

309 Willow Run

9/26/2018

just east of Rock Creek intersection



� � � � � � � � � � 	 
 � 
 � � � � �  � � � 	  � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � �� � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � 	 � �� 	 
 � 
 � � � � � � � � � � � 	  � � �� � � �  � � � � � � � � ! �  � � � �� � � � � � " # $ % & ' ( # ) * + , - . ( / ' ' , * 0 , # 1 , 2 ) 3 4 , . 5 % '6 $ 3 7 3 # , , 7 8 #9 $ % + 2 : $ % * - ; ) 4 4 $ < 6 % * = *; , ' + : $ % * - 6 $ 3 7 3 # , , 7 8 #> $ # + 2 : $ % * - ; ) 4 4 $ < 6 % * = *? / ' + : $ % * -@ A B C A D E F G H I J K L M K N O P Q R L S Q T U V W W X Y Z [ \ ] H I J K L M K N O P Q R L S Q T U V W W X Y Z [ \ ] H I J K L M K N O P Q R L S Q T U V W W X Y Z [ \ ] H I J K L M K N O P Q R L S Q T U V W W X Y Z [ \ ] ^ _ ` a b c ` d ef g h f f i j f k f f k f f l l m n n f k k o f f f f f k pf g h k q i j f l m f n k f k f l q q f f k f f f f f f k pf g h o f i j f l l f m k f k f l k q g f f l l f f f f f l pf g h m q i j f g n f k o f f l f l g p f f k q f f f f f o fM r L s t f k l k l f l m l f n l k f o o l n f k n f f f f f f u mf p h f f i j f m u f k o l f k l f k m o l k m f k m g f f f f f g mf p h k q i j f l k n f k p l f f o p f q p m n p f k o n g f f f f f k m ov N s w T M r L s t f k p o g f q q l m f q n l p l k k k m p f k q k g m f f f f f o k ki x x N y K z f o l { g n g { o f l u { o f n p { o l { m n o { p l g { n f p { n f f f fM r L s t z f q { p k k { u f k g { g g { g f k p f { n l n { m o q { g k q { m f m { p q q { u f f f f f| \ } } ~ � � ~ � � ~ � � � ] ~ f k p o g f q q l m f q n l p l k f o m n f k q k n m f f f f f o f k� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � f k f f k f f f k f f k f f f k f f k f f k f f u l { p u q { p f k f f u m { o f f f f f u n { p� O U f f f f f f f f f f p l f f k f f f f f f k fz � O U f f f f f f f f f f g { l m { l f f q { g f f f f f o { l

City of Delaware� � � � � � � � � � � � � ��   � � ¡ � ¢   £ ¤ ¥ � ¦ � § � ¨ ©



� � � � � � � � � � 	 
 � 
 � � � � �  � � � 	  � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � �� � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � 	 � �� 	 
 � 
 � � � � � � � � � � � 	  � � �� � � �  � � � � � � � � ! �  � � � �� � � � � � ª « ¬  ¬ ® ¯ ¯  ° ®
±²³³ µ́¶ ·̧¹ ¸ º»¼¼½¾¿ÀÁÂÁ

ª « ¬  ¬ ® ¯ ¯  ° ®

ª Ã Ä Å ÆÇÇÇ È Å ® ÉÊ ËÇÊ Ë Ì ¯ Í ÆÎ ÏÇÎ Ï Ð ¯ Ñ Ò ÇÇÇÓ ÔÕ É Æ È « Æ Ö ×Ï Ç Ø Ø Ê Ù ØÙ Ç ÙÏ Ù Ê Ù ÏØ Ø
¿»Ú ÛÜ ÝÞßÝÞàÛáÀ ßßßÂâãÜ äåßäåæâçè ÝßÝ éÀÜà½Üê¼ëÁìÞßíÝÝÝÝíßíìÞíÝîßíÝÌ ¯ Í Æ ÇÇÇ È Å ® Éï ðÙï Ë ª Ã Ä Å ÆÊ Ç ÎËÊ Ê Ê Ð ¯ Ñ ÒÊ ØÇÊ ØÕ É Æ È « Æ Ö ×Ó ÔÏ ï Ê ð ï Ù Î ËÇ Ê Ç Ê ÇÏ ï Ù ï ËÊ Ï ï

¹ ñòóô ô ô õö ÷·ô ô ô ¶² øöóô ô ô ù ñú ûô ô ôõ ´ó ü³ý ·óþ ¸ ôôô ôôô ôôô Ø ÿ Î ÿ Ù Ç Ê Ï Ç Ï � Ç Ç � �Ø ÿ Î ÿ Ù Ç Ê Ï Ç Ë � Ê Ø � �Ð Ö Ò Ò ¯ Ô Ä ¯ ® � ¯ Å Ã ¬ × ¯� É Ò � « ® Æ Å

City of Delaware� � � � � � � � � � � � � ��   � � ¡ � ¢   £ ¤ ¥ � ¦ � § � ¨ ©



� � � � � � � � � � 	 
 � 
 � � � � �  � � � 	  � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � �� � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � 	 � �� 	 
 � 
 � � � � � � � � � � � 	  � � �� � � �  � � � � � � � � ! �  � � � �� � � � � � City of Delaware� � � � � � � � � � � � � ��   � � ¡ � ¢   £ ¤ ¥ � ¦ � § � ¨ ©



�� � � � � �� �� 	
 �� � � � 
 � � 
 � �
 � �� � 
 � � � �� �� �� � 
 
 � ��� � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ��� 
 � 	 � � � � � � �� �� � 
 
 � ��� �� 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ���  � 	 � � � � �� � !" # !$ % &' (" ) ' *+ ,- -. /0 12 3 � � !" # !$ % &' (" ) ' *+ ,- -. /0 12 3 � � !" # !$ % &' (" ) ' *+ ,- -. /0 12 3 � �̂ _̀ a b̀ c d ` e fg h ` < J BQ H C < < < J IQ I C < < < J IQ I C < < J DQ D C < < J =Q H < C < < J IQ H < < < < < J Di %+ < C < < C < < C < C < = < < = < < < < < ?P i %+ < HQ I < < =Q H < < =Q H < CQ = < IQ I < < =Q I < < < < < =
City of Delawarej j k lm n o p p oq r s tuv pq wq xvy z { o| j } k ~ �



�� � � � � � � � � �

���� ��� ���� �����������

�� � � � � � � � � �
� �� � � ���� � � �  ¡¢  £ ¤ � ¥ � ¢ £�¢ £¦ � §¨ ���©ª« � � � � �¬ ® £ ®̄ ° �  ¢̄® ° °̄® ®

��±²³ ´µ¶´µ·²¸� ¶¶¶�¹º³ »¼́»µ½¹¾¿ ¼À¶¼À
Á�³ ·�³Â�Ã�

»ÄÄ¼¼´Å¶¼¼
»Ä¼µ¶Ä´

¤ � ¥ � ��� � � � �  ®   ¡ � �� � � ¢̄� ¢̄ ¦ � §¨ ¢ Æ�¢ Æ« � � � � �¬ ©ª¡ Æ £̄ ¢ ® ¢    ®£ � ¢ ® Ç£ Ç
� ÈÉÊË Ë ËÌ ÍÎ �Ë Ë Ë �� ÏÍÊË Ë ËÐ ÈÑÒË Ë ËÌ �Ê Ó�

Ô �ÊÕ� ËËË ËËË ËËË Ç Ȫ Ö   � ¢ £ �  × ® Ç¦ ØÇ Ȫ Ö   � ¢ £ �̄ × �̄¦ Ø¦ ¬̈̈ �ª � � � Ù � � � �  �Ú �̈ Û � � � �

City of Delawarej j k lm n o p p oq r s tuv pq wq xvy z { o| j } k ~ �



City of Delawarej j k lm n o p p oq r s tuv pq wq xvy z { o| j } k ~ �



� � � � � � � � � � 	 � 
 � � � �  � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  
 � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � 
 � � � �  � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � �� �  ! " # $ %& ' ( ) ' & * & & ' & ( & ) ' + * + & ' + ( + ) ' , * , & ' , ( , ) ' - * - & ' - ( - ) ' ( * ( & ' ( ( ( ) ' ) * ) & ' ) ( . ) (* / , 0 & * ( ( + / ) 0 * + / ( - + + * * * * *0 ( 1 $ 2 3 $ # 4 " 5 $ 6 , *7 � 2 4 8 ! � 9 # %& ' ( ) ' & * & & ' & ( & ) ' + * + & ' + ( + ) ' , * , & ' , ( , ) ' - * - & ' - ( - ) ' ( * ( & ' ( ( ( ) ' ) * ) & ' ) ( . ) (* - & + ) & , ) * , / * & * * 0 * * * * * *0 ( 1 $ 2 3 $ # 4 " 5 $ 6 + :; � 9 4 8 ! � 9 # %& ' ( ) ' & * & & ' & ( & ) ' + * + & ' + ( + ) ' , * , & ' , ( , ) ' - * - & ' - ( - ) ' ( * ( & ' ( ( ( ) ' ) * ) & ' ) ( . ) (* , + ) - - & ) / , & * & / ( , - + * * * * *0 ( 1 $ 2 3 $ # 4 " 5 $ 6 , &

< < = > ? @ A B B A C D E F ?G H B C I C J H K L M A N < O = P Q



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  29    DATE: 10/22/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-103   RESOLUTION NO:  
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING THE 2018 APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE 
TO ESTABLISH ADDITIONAL FUNDING FOR THE PURCHASE OF EQUIPMENT 
TO INSTALL SCHOOL ZONE FLASHERS AROUND SCHULTZ ELEMENTARY 
AND RECTANGULAR RAPID FLASHING BEACONS AT THE INTERSECTION OF 
ROCK CREEK DRIVE AND WILLOW RUN, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Schultz Elementary School Principal, Travis Woodworth, voiced concerns of the 
safety of students utilizing the crosswalk on Rock Creek Drive at Willow Run 
Lane and requested a multi-way stop at the intersection.  He discussed there 
have been near misses of cars traveling down Rock Creek Drive and not 
slowing/yielding to pedestrians at the intersection.  Staff conducted a multi-
way stop warrant analysis and found that a multi-way stop was not warranted 
based on the vehicular traffic volumes, but did recommend RRFB’s be installed 
on Rock Creek Drive at Willow Run Lane to enhance the safety for 
students/pedestrians.  After further discussion at the Parking and Safety 
Committee meeting on October 15, 2018, the extension of the School Zone to 
include Rock Creek Drive north and south of Willow Run Lane was also 
recommended to enhance student safety by regulating a lower speed near and 
around the school during arrival and dismissal times.  With the extension 
school zone, it was also recommended that school zone flashers be installed on 
Rock Creek Drive north and south of Willow Run Lane and on Applegate Lane 
to clearly communicate to drivers when they are entering and are within an 



active school zone.  Schultz Elementary School is currently the only elementary 
school without school zone flashers. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Funding for these improvements was not included in the 2018 Budget. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
The action is being taken as a result of the Parking and Safety Committee 
recommendation at the October 15, 2018 meeting. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
The cost of materials to install the school zone flashers at three (3) locations 
and RRFB’s at one (1) intersection is estimated at $40,000.00.  
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
None 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Exhibit A - Preliminary Location Map (subject to change pending field work) 
Engineer’s Analysis Memo (10/5/18) 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 18-103 
 
AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING THE 2018 
APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE TO ESTABLISH 
ADDITIONAL FUNDING FOR THE PURCHASE OF 
EQUIPMENT TO INSTALL SCHOOL ZONE FLASHERS 
AROUND SCHULTZ ELEMENTARY AND 
RECTANGULAR RAPID FLASHING BEACONS AT THE 
INTERSECTION OF ROCK CREEK DRIVE AND 
WILLOW RUN, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

 
WHEREAS, the Street Maintenance and Repair budget includes funding 

for the purchase of traffic signal equipment; and   
 
WHEREAS, a pedestrian safety issue has emerged around Schultz 

Elementary warranting the installation of new traffic signal equipment and 
pedestrian safety beacons; and  

 
WHEREAS, these safety improvements were not planned for nor 

budgeted in 2018; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Parking and Safety Committee is recommending the 

installation of these devices be considered an immediate priority; and  
 
WHEREAS, a supplemental appropriation is required to provide the 

funding necessary to purchase this equipment in 2018; and 
 
WHEREAS, a request has been made to the Delaware City Schools to 

split the cost of the project.  
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 

SECTION 1. That there is hereby appropriated from the unencumbered 
balance of the General Fund $40,000 increasing the following account: 

 
Transfer to SMR Fund (101-0032-5703)   $40,000 
 
SECTION 2.  That there is hereby appropriated from the unencumbered 

balance of the Street Maintenance and Repair Fund $40,000 increasing the 
following account: 

 
Traffic Division 
Operating Supply (200-2030-5330)   $40,000 
 



SECTION 3. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.  

 
SECTION 4. Emergency Clause: That this ordinance is hereby declared to 

be an emergency measure necessary to provide for the public peace, safety, 
health and welfare of the City, and for further reason to promptly address a 
safety issues around Schultz Elementary, and as such will be in full force and 
effect immediately upon its passage.   
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



Exhibit A - Schultz Elementary School 
School Zone Extention
School Zone Flasher Locations
RRFB Locations 

Legend    

RRFB

SCHOOL FLASHER

600 ft

N

➤➤

N
© 2018 Google

© 2018 Google

© 2018 Google



 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer 

FROM:    Matthew B. Weber, P.E., Deputy City Engineer 

Jessica Ormeroid, PE, PTOE, Project Engineer II 
 

DATE:   10/5/18 

 
RE: Rock Creek Drive & Willow Run Lane Multi-Way Stop Analysis 

 

Below, please find the review of the existing conditions at the intersection of Rock Creek Drive and Willow 

Run Lane with regard to a multi-way stop sign warrant analysis as established by the Ohio Manual of Uniform 

Traffic Control Devices (OMUTCD), 2012 Edition. 

The following criteria should be considered in the engineering study for a multi-way stop sign installation: 

A.  Where traffic control signals are justified, the multi-way stop is an interim measure that can be installed 
quickly to control traffic while arrangements are being made for the installation of the traffic control 
signal. 

B.  Five or more reported crashes in a 12-month period that are susceptible to correction by a multi-way 
stop installation.  Such crashes include right-turn and left-turn collisions as well as right-angle collisions. 

C. Minimum Volumes: 
1. The vehicular volume entering the intersection from the major street approaches (total of both 

approaches) averages at least 300 vehicles per hour of any 8 hours of an average day, and 
2. The combined vehicular, pedestrian, and bicycle volume entering the intersection from the 

minor street approaches (total of both approaches) averages at least 200 units per hour for the 
same 8 hours, with an average delay to the minor street vehicular traffic of at least 30 seconds 
per vehicle during the highest hour, but 

3. If the 85th percentile approach speed of the major street traffic exceeds 40 mph, the minimum 
vehicular volume warrants are 70 percent of the values provided in Items 1 and 2. 

D. Where no single criterion is satisfied, but where the Criteria B, C.1, and C.2 are all satisfied to 80 percent 

of the minimum values.  Criterion C.3 is excluded from this condition. 
 

Option: 

Other criteria that may be considered in an engineering study include: 

A. The need to control left turn conflicts; 
B. The need to control vehicle/pedestrian conflicts near locations that generate high pedestrian volumes; 
C. Locations where a road user, after stopping, cannot see conflicting traffic and is not able to reasonably 

safely negotiate the intersection unless conflicting cross traffic is also required to stop, and 
D. An intersection of two residential neighborhood collector (through) streets of similar design and 

operating characteristics where multi-way stop control would improve traffic operational characteristics 
of the intersection. 
 

 

 



 

 

 

Summary of Results based on above criteria: 

A. Based on 24-hour counts taken on 9/26/18 for Rock Creek Drive and Willow Run Lane, this intersection 
does not meet any of the signal warrants outlined in Chapter 4C of the OMUTCD. 

B. Per ODOT Crash Analytics from 2014 to current, there have not be any intersection related accidents. 
C. Minimum Volumes:  

1. Based on 24-hour count taken 9/26/18, Rock Creek Drive does not meet this condition for 8-
hours out of the day.  See attached counts. 

2. Based on the westbound 24-hour count taken 9/26/18, Willow Run Lane does not meet this 
condition for any hours of the day.  See attached counts. 

3. Based on the stealth speed data obtained on 9/26/18 to 9/28/18, the 85th percentile speed 
is 30 mph (see attached speed data).  This does not exceed 40 mph so this section will not 
apply to this intersection. 

D. Based on the accident history and 24-hour count data for both roadways, B, C.1 and C.2 are not 
satisfied at 80 percent of the minimum values. 
 

Option: 

A. There have not been any intersection related accidents at this intersection over the past 3-years. 
B. There have not been any pedestrian related accidents at this intersection, but there is potential for 

vehicle/pedestrian conflicts at this intersection given that there are school aged pedestrians that 
frequent this intersection on school days during the arrival and dismissal times to Schultz 
Elementary School. 

C. There is a clear line of sight for traffic turning off of Willow Run Lane onto Rock Creek Drive. 
D. Based on the 24-hour traffic counts, these two roadways are both classified as local roadways.  Rock 

Creek Drive has an ADT of 828 and Willow Run Lane an ADT of 581.   
 

Based on the above summary of results, a multi-way stop at the Rock Creek Drive and Willow Run Lane is not 

warranted by traffic volumes nor is it recommended.  Given the pedestrian volumes (greater than 10 

pedestrians/hour) of school aged students that cross Rock Creek Drive during the arrival and dismissal times 

of Schultz Elementary School and there is potential for vehicle/pedestrian conflict, pedestrian crossing 

enhancements are recommended for Rock Creek Drive.  Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacon (RRFB) devices 

would be an appropriate safety countermeasure for this location given it can be activated when pedestrian 

demand is present, and only affect traffic flow on Rock Creek Drive as it is needed. When such devices are 

installed, an education program shall be implemented by the school on the proper operation and use of these 

devices.  The estimated costs to install these units utilizing a contractor is approximately $15,000. 

 

 

 

 



Street:

Date:

Location:

Date Time Northbound Southbound Total

9/26/2018 16:00 36 23 59

9/26/2018 17:00 42 24 66

9/26/2018 18:00 42 16 58

9/26/2018 19:00 25 16 41

9/26/2018 20:00 26 4 30

9/26/2018 21:00 23 6 29

9/26/2018 22:00 4 6 10 `

9/26/2018 23:00 4 1 5

9/27/2018 0:00 2 3 5

9/27/2018 1:00 2 0 2

9/27/2018 2:00 0 0 0

9/27/2018 3:00 1 0 1

9/27/2018 4:00 3 5 8

9/27/2018 5:00 4 5 9

9/27/2018 6:00 11 29 40

9/27/2018 7:00 26 41 67

9/27/2018 8:00 48 53 101

9/27/2018 9:00 15 25 40

9/27/2018 10:00 11 20 31

9/27/2018 11:00 20 17 37

9/27/2018 12:00 19 11 30

9/27/2018 13:00 25 18 43

9/27/2018 14:00 40 27 67

9/27/2018 15:00 47 38 85

9/27/2018 16:00 40 28 68

9/27/2018 17:00 38 31 69

9/27/2018 18:00 24 21 45

9/27/2018 19:00 29 20 49

9/27/2018 20:00 21 8 29

9/27/2018 21:00 16 3 19

9/27/2018 22:00 9 4 13

9/27/2018 23:00 8 5 13

9/28/2018 0:00 2 3 5

9/28/2018 1:00 0 0 0

9/28/2018 2:00 0 1 1

9/28/2018 3:00 1 0 1

9/28/2018 4:00 0 4 4

9/28/2018 5:00 3 12 15

9/28/2018 6:00 8 34 42

9/28/2018 7:00 30 40 70

9/28/2018 8:00 36 55 91

9/28/2018 9:00 26 25 51

438 390 828 24 Hr ADT

173 Rock Creek

9/26/2018

just north of Willow Run intersection



Street:

Date:

Location:

Date Time Eastbound Westbound Total

9/26/2018 16:00 18 21 39

9/26/2018 17:00 17 17 34

9/26/2018 18:00 6 7 13

9/26/2018 19:00 3 7 10

9/26/2018 20:00 2 5 7

9/26/2018 21:00 6 1 7

9/26/2018 22:00 0 1 1 `

9/26/2018 23:00 1 1 2

9/27/2018 0:00 0 0 0

9/27/2018 1:00 0 0 0

9/27/2018 2:00 0 0 0

9/27/2018 3:00 0 0 0

9/27/2018 4:00 0 2 2

9/27/2018 5:00 0 1 1

9/27/2018 6:00 19 2 21

9/27/2018 7:00 44 12 56

9/27/2018 8:00 102 72 174

9/27/2018 9:00 7 10 17

9/27/2018 10:00 8 12 20

9/27/2018 11:00 11 6 17

9/27/2018 12:00 10 5 15

9/27/2018 13:00 6 4 10

9/27/2018 14:00 30 12 42

9/27/2018 15:00 34 72 106

9/27/2018 16:00 14 20 34

9/27/2018 17:00 15 20 35

9/27/2018 18:00 5 8 13

9/27/2018 19:00 8 9 17

9/27/2018 20:00 3 3 6

9/27/2018 21:00 3 1 4

9/27/2018 22:00 2 2 4

9/27/2018 23:00 1 0 1

9/28/2018 0:00 1 0 1

9/28/2018 1:00 0 0 0

9/28/2018 2:00 0 0 0

9/28/2018 3:00 0 0 0

9/28/2018 4:00 0 0 0

9/28/2018 5:00 0 1 1

9/28/2018 6:00 13 3 16

9/28/2018 7:00 56 16 72

9/28/2018 8:00 107 88 195

9/28/2018 9:00 14 10 24

323 258 581 24 Hr ADT

309 Willow Run

9/26/2018

just east of Rock Creek intersection



� � � � � � � � � � 	 
 � 
 � � � � �  � � � 	  � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � �� � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � 	 � �� 	 
 � 
 � � � � � � � � � � � 	  � � �� � � �  � � � � � � � � ! �  � � � �� � � � � � " # $ % & ' ( # ) * + , - . ( / ' ' , * 0 , # 1 , 2 ) 3 4 , . 5 % '6 $ 3 7 3 # , , 7 8 #9 $ % + 2 : $ % * - ; ) 4 4 $ < 6 % * = *; , ' + : $ % * - 6 $ 3 7 3 # , , 7 8 #> $ # + 2 : $ % * - ; ) 4 4 $ < 6 % * = *? / ' + : $ % * -@ A B C A D E F G H I J K L M K N O P Q R L S Q T U V W W X Y Z [ \ ] H I J K L M K N O P Q R L S Q T U V W W X Y Z [ \ ] H I J K L M K N O P Q R L S Q T U V W W X Y Z [ \ ] H I J K L M K N O P Q R L S Q T U V W W X Y Z [ \ ] ^ _ ` a b c ` d ef g h f f i j f k f f k f f l l m n n f k k o f f f f f k pf g h k q i j f l m f n k f k f l q q f f k f f f f f f k pf g h o f i j f l l f m k f k f l k q g f f l l f f f f f l pf g h m q i j f g n f k o f f l f l g p f f k q f f f f f o fM r L s t f k l k l f l m l f n l k f o o l n f k n f f f f f f u mf p h f f i j f m u f k o l f k l f k m o l k m f k m g f f f f f g mf p h k q i j f l k n f k p l f f o p f q p m n p f k o n g f f f f f k m ov N s w T M r L s t f k p o g f q q l m f q n l p l k k k m p f k q k g m f f f f f o k ki x x N y K z f o l { g n g { o f l u { o f n p { o l { m n o { p l g { n f p { n f f f fM r L s t z f q { p k k { u f k g { g g { g f k p f { n l n { m o q { g k q { m f m { p q q { u f f f f f| \ } } ~ � � ~ � � ~ � � � ] ~ f k p o g f q q l m f q n l p l k f o m n f k q k n m f f f f f o f k� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � f k f f k f f f k f f k f f f k f f k f f k f f u l { p u q { p f k f f u m { o f f f f f u n { p� O U f f f f f f f f f f p l f f k f f f f f f k fz � O U f f f f f f f f f f g { l m { l f f q { g f f f f f o { l

City of Delaware� � � � � � � � � � � � � ��   � � ¡ � ¢   £ ¤ ¥ � ¦ � § � ¨ ©



� � � � � � � � � � 	 
 � 
 � � � � �  � � � 	  � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � �� � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � 	 � �� 	 
 � 
 � � � � � � � � � � � 	  � � �� � � �  � � � � � � � � ! �  � � � �� � � � � � ª « ¬  ¬ ® ¯ ¯  ° ®
±²³³ µ́¶ ·̧¹ ¸ º»¼¼½¾¿ÀÁÂÁ

ª « ¬  ¬ ® ¯ ¯  ° ®

ª Ã Ä Å ÆÇÇÇ È Å ® ÉÊ ËÇÊ Ë Ì ¯ Í ÆÎ ÏÇÎ Ï Ð ¯ Ñ Ò ÇÇÇÓ ÔÕ É Æ È « Æ Ö ×Ï Ç Ø Ø Ê Ù ØÙ Ç ÙÏ Ù Ê Ù ÏØ Ø
¿»Ú ÛÜ ÝÞßÝÞàÛáÀ ßßßÂâãÜ äåßäåæâçè ÝßÝ éÀÜà½Üê¼ëÁìÞßíÝÝÝÝíßíìÞíÝîßíÝÌ ¯ Í Æ ÇÇÇ È Å ® Éï ðÙï Ë ª Ã Ä Å ÆÊ Ç ÎËÊ Ê Ê Ð ¯ Ñ ÒÊ ØÇÊ ØÕ É Æ È « Æ Ö ×Ó ÔÏ ï Ê ð ï Ù Î ËÇ Ê Ç Ê ÇÏ ï Ù ï ËÊ Ï ï

¹ ñòóô ô ô õö ÷·ô ô ô ¶² øöóô ô ô ù ñú ûô ô ôõ ´ó ü³ý ·óþ ¸ ôôô ôôô ôôô Ø ÿ Î ÿ Ù Ç Ê Ï Ç Ï � Ç Ç � �Ø ÿ Î ÿ Ù Ç Ê Ï Ç Ë � Ê Ø � �Ð Ö Ò Ò ¯ Ô Ä ¯ ® � ¯ Å Ã ¬ × ¯� É Ò � « ® Æ Å

City of Delaware� � � � � � � � � � � � � ��   � � ¡ � ¢   £ ¤ ¥ � ¦ � § � ¨ ©



� � � � � � � � � � 	 
 � 
 � � � � �  � � � 	  � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � �� � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � 	 � �� 	 
 � 
 � � � � � � � � � � � 	  � � �� � � �  � � � � � � � � ! �  � � � �� � � � � � City of Delaware� � � � � � � � � � � � � ��   � � ¡ � ¢   £ ¤ ¥ � ¦ � § � ¨ ©



�� � � � � �� �� 	
 �� � � � 
 � � 
 � �
 � �� � 
 � � � �� �� �� � 
 
 � ��� � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ��� 
 � 	 � � � � � � �� �� � 
 
 � ��� �� 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ���  � 	 � � � � �� � !" # !$ % &' (" ) ' *+ ,- -. /0 12 3 � � !" # !$ % &' (" ) ' *+ ,- -. /0 12 3 � � !" # !$ % &' (" ) ' *+ ,- -. /0 12 3 � �̂ _̀ a b̀ c d ` e fg h ` < J BQ H C < < < J IQ I C < < < J IQ I C < < J DQ D C < < J =Q H < C < < J IQ H < < < < < J Di %+ < C < < C < < C < C < = < < = < < < < < ?P i %+ < HQ I < < =Q H < < =Q H < CQ = < IQ I < < =Q I < < < < < =
City of Delawarej j k lm n o p p oq r s tuv pq wq xvy z { o| j } k ~ �



�� � � � � � � � � �

���� ��� ���� �����������

�� � � � � � � � � �
� �� � � ���� � � �  ¡¢  £ ¤ � ¥ � ¢ £�¢ £¦ � §¨ ���©ª« � � � � �¬ ® £ ®̄ ° �  ¢̄® ° °̄® ®

��±²³ ´µ¶´µ·²¸� ¶¶¶�¹º³ »¼́»µ½¹¾¿ ¼À¶¼À
Á�³ ·�³Â�Ã�

»ÄÄ¼¼´Å¶¼¼
»Ä¼µ¶Ä´

¤ � ¥ � ��� � � � �  ®   ¡ � �� � � ¢̄� ¢̄ ¦ � §¨ ¢ Æ�¢ Æ« � � � � �¬ ©ª¡ Æ £̄ ¢ ® ¢    ®£ � ¢ ® Ç£ Ç
� ÈÉÊË Ë ËÌ ÍÎ �Ë Ë Ë �� ÏÍÊË Ë ËÐ ÈÑÒË Ë ËÌ �Ê Ó�

Ô �ÊÕ� ËËË ËËË ËËË Ç Ȫ Ö   � ¢ £ �  × ® Ç¦ ØÇ Ȫ Ö   � ¢ £ �̄ × �̄¦ Ø¦ ¬̈̈ �ª � � � Ù � � � �  �Ú �̈ Û � � � �

City of Delawarej j k lm n o p p oq r s tuv pq wq xvy z { o| j } k ~ �



City of Delawarej j k lm n o p p oq r s tuv pq wq xvy z { o| j } k ~ �



� � � � � � � � � � 	 � 
 � � � �  � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  
 � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � 
 � � � �  � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � �� �  ! " # $ %& ' ( ) ' & * & & ' & ( & ) ' + * + & ' + ( + ) ' , * , & ' , ( , ) ' - * - & ' - ( - ) ' ( * ( & ' ( ( ( ) ' ) * ) & ' ) ( . ) (* / , 0 & * ( ( + / ) 0 * + / ( - + + * * * * *0 ( 1 $ 2 3 $ # 4 " 5 $ 6 , *7 � 2 4 8 ! � 9 # %& ' ( ) ' & * & & ' & ( & ) ' + * + & ' + ( + ) ' , * , & ' , ( , ) ' - * - & ' - ( - ) ' ( * ( & ' ( ( ( ) ' ) * ) & ' ) ( . ) (* - & + ) & , ) * , / * & * * 0 * * * * * *0 ( 1 $ 2 3 $ # 4 " 5 $ 6 + :; � 9 4 8 ! � 9 # %& ' ( ) ' & * & & ' & ( & ) ' + * + & ' + ( + ) ' , * , & ' , ( , ) ' - * - & ' - ( - ) ' ( * ( & ' ( ( ( ) ' ) * ) & ' ) ( . ) (* , + ) - - & ) / , & * & / ( , - + * * * * *0 ( 1 $ 2 3 $ # 4 " 5 $ 6 , &

< < = > ? @ A B B A C D E F ?G H B C I C J H K L M A N < O = P Q



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 30     DATE:  10/22/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 18-58 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Darren Shulman, City Attorney  
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN AND ENTER 
INTO AN INTERGOVERMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH THE DELAWARE 
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS FOR INDIGENT DEFENSE SERVICES FOR 
MUNICIPAL CODE VIOLATIONS. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The County Public Defender’s Office requires each city to have an agreement in 
place with the County to pay for counsel for indigent defendants in Municipal 
Court.   
 
Because defendants typically are not entitled to a public defender when 
charged under the City’s Codified Ordinances, we have not had to issue a 
payment for indigent defense services during the life of this agreement. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
The County Public Defender requires annual renewals, authorized by City 
Council Ordinance every year.   
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 



POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval  
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
N/A 



RESOLUTION NO. 18-58 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 

TO SIGN AND ENTER INTO AN 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH THE 
DELAWARE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS FOR 
INDIGENT DEFENSE SERVICES FOR MUNICIPAL 
CODE VIOLATIONS. 

 
WHEREAS, in 2011 the City of Delaware and the Delaware County 

Commissioners entered into an agreement on October 10, 2011 for the purpose 
of indigent defense services for Municipal Code violations; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3.1 of the Agreement, the Agreement can 

be renewed for additional one year terms upon approval by City Council; and 
 
WHEREAS, the attached agreement adds language required by the Ohio 

Public Defender, but is otherwise consistent with the existing agreement.   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF DELAWARE, OHIO THAT: 
 
 SECTION 1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to renew the 
Intergovernmental Agreement for indigent defense services for Municipal Code 
violations attached hereto for a term ending on December 31, 2019. 
 

SECTION 2.  A copy of this resolution shall be delivered to the Delaware 
County Commissioners and the Ohio Public Defender, located at 250 East 
Broad Street, Suite 1400, Columbus, Ohio 43215. 

 
SECTION 3.  That this resolution shall be in force and effect immediately 

upon its passage. 
 

 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  31    DATE: 10/22/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 18-59 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO  
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION IN OPPOSITION TO STATE ISSUE 1 IN THE NOVEMBER 2018 
GENERAL ELECTION. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
State Issue 1 is a proposed amendment to the Ohio Constitution which will 
impose sweeping changes to Ohio’s criminal sentencing and drug laws while 
relying on an unproven financial scheme to compensate municipalities for the 
new burdens they will have to take on. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
State Issue 1 is opposed by a substantial number of Ohio government groups 
as well as individual judges. The passage of Issue 1 will remove important 
sentencing tools from judges and limit their discretion.  It will also impose new 
financial burdens on municipalities such as the City of Delaware. It is more 
difficult to change the Constitution than the Ohio Revised Code, which is where 
changes such as the ones included in Issue 1 should be made.  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
If Issue 1 passes the changes will have a large fiscal impact on the Municipal 
Prosecutor’s Office.  While the extent of the impact is unknown, it is likely that 
a supplemental appropriation will be required at some point in 2019.   



 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Darren Shulman  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval   
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
N/A 



RESOLUTION NO. 18-59 
 

A RESOLUTION IN OPPOSITION TO STATE ISSUE 1 
IN THE NOVEMBER 2018 GENERAL ELECTION.  

 
 WHEREAS, Ohio voters in this November’s general election will have the 
opportunity to vote on State Issue 1, a ballot question that would amend Article 
XV of the Ohio Constitution, making possession of controlled substances a 
misdemeanor, rather than a felony; prohibiting jail sentencing for up to two 
offenses within 24 months; and reducing current sentences of incarceration of 
convicted offenders by up to 25 percent if the individual also has not been 
incarcerated for “murder, rape or child molestation”; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the controlled substances in question include fentanyl, 
heroin, methamphetamine, cocaine, and LSD, the documented abuses of which 
result in crime and death throughout the State of Ohio and the United States 
of America; and  
 

WHEREAS, we believe this amendment will unfairly burden local 
government agencies. Specifically, by reducing unlawful possession of drugs of 
abuse to a misdemeanor, it shifts the duty of supervision of a vast number of 
offenders with complex treatment needs to municipal courts, while relying on 
an unproven funding scheme to support municipalities in undertaking this 
extensive new mandate; and  

 
WHEREAS, we believe that a policy change of this magnitude should not 

be placed in the Ohio Constitution where it could not be changed easily or 
efficiently, thereby limiting the ability of state and local agencies to respond 
quickly to future developments and threats; and  
 
 WHEREAS, while the proponents and opponents of State Issue 1 all 
agree that substance abuse presents a crisis to our society and criminal justice 
system, we believe this amendment will result in  drug penalties so lenient that 
the problem will be worsened instead of solved; and 
 

WHEREAS, we believe the passage of State Issue 1 would increase abuse 
of dangerous drugs at a time when many employers are struggling to attract 
qualified employees; and 
 
 WHEREAS, we believe that approval of this amendment will undermine 
the work being done by specialized courts throughout the State of Ohio by de-
incentivizing participation in drug-court mandated treatment programs; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Issue 1 has earned the opposition of the Ohio Municipal 
League, the Ohio Judicial Conference, the Ohio Society of Addiction Medicine, 
the Ohio Crime Victim Justice Center, the Ohio Domestic Violence Network, the 



Ohio Association of Chiefs of Police, the Ohio State Bar Association, the Ohio 
Chief Probation Officers Association, the Ohio State Prosecuting Attorneys 
Association, the Buckeye State Sheriff’s Association, the Ohio Clerk of Courts 
Association, the County Auditor’s Association of Ohio, the County Treasurers 
Association of Ohio, the Ohio Recorder’s Association, the Ohio State Coroners 
Association, the County Commissioners Association of Ohio, and many 
individual Ohio Judges and other civic organizations.  
   
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF DELAWARE, STATE OF OHIO: 
 
 SECTION 1. That the members of the Council of the City of Delaware, 
hereby proclaim our firm opposition to State Issue 1 in the November 6, 2018, 
General Election, and we encourage the residents of the City of Delaware, Ohio, 
to consider carefully the available information and vote against State Issue 1’s 
adoption.   
  
 SECTION 2. That this resolution shall be in force and effect immediately 
upon its passage.  
   

 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



TO: Members of City Council

FROM: Dean Stelzer, Finance Director

DATE: October 17, 2018

Reports Included

Page                     Reports                   Purpose

2 Revenues by Source This summary compares year-to-date revenues for 2018 to 2017 by source.

3  General Fund Summary of General Fund budgeted revenues, expenditures and fund 

  balance.

4 Other  Operating Funds Summary of budgeted revenues, expenditures, & fund balances for 

   non-general fund operating funds.

5 Other Funds Other non-operating funds revenues, expenditures and fund balance.

6 Insurance Summary of the City's self-funded health insurance costs with 

  comparisons to last year.

7 Income Tax Monthly income tax collections for last three years.  Also includes 

  tax collection projections for remainder of the year.

Highlights:

*  Income tax collections are up 6.26% compared to last year.  The 2018 Budget projected a 5.5% 

increase.

* Engineering Fee revenue is down $331,618 from the very high 2017 levels.  Contracted

engineering review expenditures are approximately $below the 2017 amounts at this time.

Engineering review fees are paid up front prior to review costs being incurred.  The fees charged 

are set to cover related costs over time.

* Building permits are up $319,978 (59) compared to last year as new housing starts remain high.

* Capacity and Impact Fee revenue related to new housing and commercial development is up

$2,485,777 (99%) over 2017 levels.

YTD 2018 Budget Supplementals

18-10 ($200,000) - General Fund - Reduce Council budget 

$91,547  -  Airport Hangar Fund - Amount inadvertently left out of original appropriation

($1,750,000) - Refuse Fund - Reduce budget for project started in 2017

18-19 $10,000 - Dev Reserve Fund - Cams, Inc. economic development incentive

18-20  $18,000 - P&R Fund - Increase appropriation for pool pump replacement

18-25 $25,000 - Airport Fund - For Business Plan

18-26 $1,185,686 - CIP Fund - Gazette Building improvements

$615,000 - Municipal Impact Fee Fund - Gazette Building improvements

18-39 $10,000 - ED Incentive

18-42 $57,670 - Muncipal Court

18-45 $90,000 - SMR snow removal

18-46 $376,115 - Park Improvement Levy

18-76 $777,600 - CIP Fund Annex and City Hall Improvements 

18-78 $24,998 - Park Impact Fee Fund, Trail improvements

18-79 $53,210 -Operating Funds, fuel supply

18-86 $120,000 - Airport Fund, aviation fuel

APRIL FINANCE REPORT



FINANCE DIRECTOR'S REPORT

REVENUES BY SOURCE

September 30, 2018

Revenues Revenues  

@ 9/31/18 @ 9/31/17 % Change

TAXES

Income Tax 21,440,900$         20,178,664$         6.26%
 Property Tax 1,958,696             1,828,336             7.13%

Local Government Fund 455,644                449,229                1.43%
Hotel/Motel Tax 66,568                  61,812                  7.69%
Gasoline Taxes 883,204                859,107                2.80%
License Plate Tax 525,047                503,250                4.33%

 
FEES  

Franchise Fee (cable tv) 307,167$              276,887$              10.94%
Parking Meter & Lot Fees 61,379                  64,382                  -4.66%
Fines/Forfeitures/Court Diversion Fees 111,747                104,744                6.69%
Impact Fees 801,163                390,859                104.97%
Airport - Fuel 527,902                404,877                30.39%
Cemetery 106,108                126,104                -15.86%
Golf Course 145,863                153,739                -5.12%

REIMBURSEMENTS

Engineering Fees 1,213,001$           1,544,619$           -21.47%
Fire/EMS Reimbursement 684,303                835,087                -18.06%
Prosecutor Reimbursements 190,030                216,420                -12.19%
Building Permits and Fees 864,208                544,230                58.79%

UTILITY CHARGES   
Water  -  Meter Charges 4,181,065$           4,022,871$           3.93%
           -  Capacity Fees 2,159,204             1,084,518             99.09%
Sewer  -  Meter Charges 4,995,516             4,819,207             3.66%
           -  Capacity Fees 2,058,197             1,057,310             94.66%
Refuse 2,598,338             2,621,495             -0.88%
Storm Sewer 641,089                624,429                2.67%

MUNICIPAL COURT REVENUES 2,546,918$           2,470,573$           3.09%

2



FINANCE DIRECTOR'S REPORT

GENERAL FUND REVENUES

September 30, 2018

September 75.0% of year Comparative

Revenues 2018 Revenues As Revenues % Change

9/30/2018 Budget % of Budget 9/30/2017 YTD

GENERAL FUND

Property Tax 1,508,761 1,500,000 100.58% 1,412,305 6.83%

City Income Tax 11,594,136 14,787,387 78.41% 10,914,110 6.23%

Other Taxes 975 0 0.00% 1,050 0.00%

Local Government Fund 455,644 610,000 74.70% 449,229 1.43%

Fines and Forfeitures 111,747 140,000 79.82% 104,744 6.69%
Engineering Fees 1,213,001 1,000,000 121.30% 1,544,619 (21.47%)

Prosecutor Contracts 190,030 285,000 66.68% 216,420 (12.19%)

Parking Meters 28,573 38,000 75.19% 26,933 6.09%

Other Fees and Contracts 34,475 0 0.00% 21,406 61.05%

Liquor Permits 43,024 45,000 95.61% 39,488 8.95%

Franchise Fees 307,167 375,000 81.91% 276,887 10.94%

Licenses & Permits 864,208 725,000 119.20% 544,230 58.79%

Investment Income 485,979 402,000 120.89% 226,747 114.33%

Miscellaneous 54,042 100,000 54.04% 51,228 5.49%

Reimbursements 177,915 200,000 88.96% 117,316 51.65%

Transfers 1,484,243 1,920,000 77.30% 1,430,634 3.75%

TOTAL 18,553,920 22,127,387 83.85% 17,377,346 6.77%

 

GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES 

Comparative

Expenses 2018 Expenses As Expenses % Change

9/30/2018 Budget % of Budget 9/30/2017 YTD

GENERAL FUND

City Council 111,851 154,873 72.22% 98,405 13.66%

City Manager 520,495 686,556 75.81% 519,579 0.18%

Human Resources 218,352 327,781 66.62% 248,972 (12.30%)

Economic Development 301,741 391,299 77.11% 282,749 6.72%

Legal Affairs/Prosecution 579,640 793,893 73.01% 586,183 (1.12%)

Finance 1,115,849 1,521,673 73.33% 1,096,551 1.76%

Income Tax Refunds 387,210 400,000 96.80% 402,919 (3.90%)

General Administration 5,289,660 5,303,700 99.74% 4,171,719 26.80%

Risk Management 283,225 343,000 82.57% 245,263 15.48%

Police 6,250,559 8,744,063 71.48% 6,000,917 4.16%

Planning 875,306 1,161,774 75.34% 776,828 12.68%

Engineering 1,266,904 1,763,921 71.82% 1,279,192 (0.96%)

City Buildings 354,733 509,690 69.60% 313,602 13.12%

TOTAL 17,555,525 22,102,223 79.43% 16,022,879 9.57%

General Fund Beginning Balance January 1, 2018 5,001,541           

 2018 General Fund Revenues 18,553,920       

 2018 General Fund Expenditures (17,555,525)      

 Advances to Other Funds -                      

 Outstanding Encumbrances 6/30/18 (725,430)            

General Fund Ending Fund Balance Sept 30, 2018 5,274,506         

3



FINANCE DIRECTOR'S REPORT

OTHER OPERATING FUNDs
September 30, 2018

 

REVENUES

Revenues 2018 Revenues As Revenues % Change

9/30/2018 Budget % of Budget 9/30/2017 YTD

STREET MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 2,189,593 2,869,500 76.31% 2,116,726 3.44%

STORM SEWER 642,101 853,000 75.28% 626,009 2.57%

PARKS AND RECREATION 974,569 1,325,500 73.52% 1,097,698 (11.22%)

CEMETERY 177,360 251,000 70.66% 182,354 (2.74%)

AIRPORT OPERATIONS 667,413 705,620 94.59% 544,505 22.57%

FIRE/EMS INCOME TAX 9,021,147 11,217,625 80.42% 12,177,237 (25.92%)

MUNICIPAL COURT 2,398,950 2,809,500 85.39% 2,516,537 (4.67%)

GOLF COURSE 145,863 183,500 79.49% 153,739 (5.12%)

WATER 4,417,699 5,921,482 74.60% 4,421,404 (0.08%)

SEWER 5,322,034 7,082,000 75.15% 5,154,608 3.25%

REFUSE 2,655,655 3,614,500 73.47% 2,662,711 (0.26%)

GARAGE ROTARY 490,701 652,492 75.20% 484,080 1.37%

INFORMATION TECH. ROTARY 807,013 1,076,017 75.00% 789,637 2.20%

TOTAL 29,910,098 38,561,736 77.56% 32,927,245 (9.16%)

 

EXPENDITURES

Expenditures 2018 Expenses As Expenses % Change

9/30/2018 Budget % of Budget 9/30/2017 YTD

STREET MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 2,294,320 3,019,086 75.99% 1,983,225 15.69%

STORM SEWER 364,318 1,466,181 24.85% 1,129,263 (67.74%)

PARKS AND RECREATION 995,296 1,422,368 69.97% 1,007,815 (1.24%)

CEMETERY 181,051 327,957 55.21% 196,469 (7.85%)

AIRPORT OPERATIONS 643,275 791,739 81.25% 529,132 21.57%

FIRE/EMS INCOME TAX 8,370,780 11,999,000 69.76% 6,815,929 22.81%

MUNICIPAL COURT 1,973,334 2,791,646 70.69% 1,885,570 4.65%

GOLF COURSE 142,453 222,698 63.97% 135,973 4.77%

WATER OPERATIONS 4,173,239 6,351,400 65.71% 4,097,691 1.84%

SEWER OPERATIONS 4,249,526 6,998,699 60.72% 4,391,897 (3.24%)

REFUSE 4,114,223 5,300,142 77.62% 2,450,003 67.93%

GARAGE ROTARY 457,176 654,493 69.85% 438,098 4.35%

INFORMATION TECH. ROTARY 732,981 1,165,329 62.90% 643,456 13.91%

TOTAL 28,691,972 42,510,738 67.49% 25,704,521 11.62%

 

FUND BALANCES

Balance Revenues Expenditures Outstanding Balance

1/1/2018 9/30/2018 9/30/2018 Encumb. 9/30/2018

STREET MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 516,178 2,189,593 2,294,320 237,531 173,920

STORM SEWER 1,482,843 642,101 364,318 70,188 1,690,438

PARKS AND RECREATION 295,953 974,569 995,296 135,177 140,049

CEMETERY 297,627 177,360 181,051 33,678 260,258

AIRPORT OPERATIONS 271,973 667,413 643,275 77,305 218,806

FIRE/EMS INCOME TAX 10,568,832 9,021,147 8,370,780 2,126,930 9,092,269

MUNICIPAL COURT 2,441,281 2,398,950 1,973,334 19,150 2,847,747

GOLF COURSE 68,498 145,863 142,453 4,786 67,122

WATER OPERATIONS 1,230,846 4,417,699 4,173,239 110,155 1,365,151

SEWER OPERATIONS 2,657,780 5,322,034 4,249,526 123,461 3,606,827

REFUSE 2,391,565 2,655,655 4,114,223 613,873 319,124

GARAGE ROTARY 340,629 490,701 457,176 29,770 344,384

INFORMATION TECH. ROTARY 724,385 807,013 732,981 25,195 773,222

TOTAL 23,288,390 29,910,098 28,691,972 3,607,199 20,899,317

4



FINANCE DIRECTOR'S REPORT

OTHER FUND REVENUES/EXPENSES/FUND BALANCE

September 30, 2018

Beginning Ending

Fund Revenues Expenses Outstanding Fund

Balance 9/30/2018 9/30/2018 Encumbrances Balance

STATE HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENT 211,817 82,850 103,900 0 190,767

LICENSE FEE 222,085 332,097 15,633 474,868 63,681

TREE REPL FUND 216,317 37,250 50,000 16,000 187,567

HANGARS 164,197 75,348 35,534 0 204,011

REC CTR INCOME TAX 4,002,841 1,788,876 1,209,556 291,940 4,290,221

AIRPORT TIF FUND 82,416 27,069 0 0 109,485

GLENN RD BRIDGE TIF FUND 2,000,560 1,108,051 46,252 224,127 2,838,232

SKY CLIMBER/V&P TIF 0 47,977 23,991 46,009 -22,023

MILL RUN TIF 0 147,824 80,993 89,007 -22,176

COURT-IDIAM 22,434 30,519 18,786 6,019 28,148

DRUG ENFORCEMENT FUND 58,801 2,300 4,364 250 56,487

COURT-ALCOHOL TREATMENT 534,109 30,946 22,022 0 543,033

OMVI ENFORCEMENT/EDUCATION 5,904 1,171 877 3,488 2,710

POLICE JUDGEMENT FUND 121,506 61,664 52,019 12,722 118,429

PARK EXACTION FEE 167,887 0 21,000 6,500 140,387

COMPUTER LEGAL RESEARCH-COURT 620,406 214,751 145,710 13,592 675,855

COURT-SPECIAL PROJECTS 867,015 218,648 403,114 1,133 681,416

COURT-PROBATION SERVICES 498,020 251,933 231,817 1,128 517,008

POLICE/FIRE DISABILITY PENSION 0 449,935 449,935 0 0

COMM PROMOTION FUND 62,076 66,568 85,733 21,250 21,661

COMMUNITY DEV BLOCK GRANT 2,530 0 0 0 2,530

E.D. REVOLVING LOAN 197,662 80,230 20,309 50,843 206,740

CHIP GRANT 400 0 400 0 0

GENERAL BOND RETIREMENT 331,642 642,166 642,897 3,000 327,911

PARK IMPROV BOND FUND 109,778 984,546 367,676 0 726,648

SE HIGHLAND BOND FUND 83,896 752,395 288,804 0 547,487

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 1,333,336 3,440,344 1,683,032 2,736,912 353,736

POINT PROJECT 0 415,613 292,059 792,839 -669,285

FAA AIRPORT GRANT 0 -46,202 0 0 -46,202

FAA ALLOC/IMP GRANT 0 52,118 4,170 81,988 -34,040

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT 141,957 200,000 162,403 36,688 142,866

PARKS IMP FEE 1,120,156 461,101 228,966 187,957 1,164,334

POL IMP FEE 311,854 72,750 3,387 165 381,052

FIRE IMP FEE 305,460 138,585 92,108 169 351,768

MUNIC IMPACT FEE FUND 556,779 157,939 253,716 188,556 272,446

GLENN RD S CONSTR FUND 3,254,650 10,738,328 10,835,931 18,913 3,138,134

PARKING LOTS 42,271 32,809 32,184 9,856 33,040

WATER CIP 10,366,075 3,232,423 2,454,666 73,547 11,070,285

SEWER CIP 7,564,573 4,488,589 4,406,571 1,016,181 6,630,410

HEALTH INSURANCE 1,918,595 4,246,828 4,647,117 11,435 1,506,871

WORKERS COMPENSATION 2,352,622 545,338 105,704 2,900 2,789,356

FIRE DONATION 6,345 0 0 0 6,345

PARKS/REC DONATION 6,810 12,000 0 0 18,810

POLICE DONATION 7,796 775 560 0 8,011

MAYORS DONATION FUND 1,657 1,290 1,426 0 1,521

PROJECT TRUST FUND 546,222 72,333 0 0 618,555

UNCLAIMED FUNDS TRUST FUND 15,394 0 0 0 15,394

MUNI CT UNCLAIMED FUNDS 57,425 9,235 0 0 66,660

DEV RESERV FUND 924,886 0 10,000 0 914,886

RESERVE ACCOUNT FUND 1,047,056 0 0 0 1,047,056

BERKSHIRE JEDD FUND 203,704 281,158 395,196 203,044 -113,378

CEMETERY PERPETUAL CARE FUND 34,981 402 836 0 34,547

STATE HIGHWAY PATROL FUND 0 44,874 40,099 0 4,775

STATE BUILDING PERMIT FEE 371 8,666 8,008 0 1,029

PERFORMANCE BOND 185,077 4,148 4,148 0 185,077

  TOTAL 42,890,354 36,046,558 29,983,609 6,623,026 42,330,277

5



City of Delaware
      Employee Health Insurance Plan

September 30, 2018
 

September YTD 2018 % of YTD % Change

Account 2018 2018 Budget Budget 2017 2017-18

Life Insurance 2,087$            4,978$            27,000$          18.4% 20,904$          -76.2%

Insurance Opt-Out 2,195               20,255            30,500            66.4% 21,455            -5.6%

Preventative Care 1,535               25,250            55,000            45.9% 22,821            10.6%

Vision Coverage -                   24,439            25,200            97.0% 10,923            123.7%

Administrative Fees

Excise Tax -                   2,820               30,000            0.0% 1,724               0.0%

 TPA Fees 7,828               70,496            90,000            78.3% 71,245            -1.1%

 PPO Fees 3,036               27,522            45,000            61.2% 33,068            -16.8%
 Broker Fees 896                  4,645               5,000               92.9% -                   0.0%

  Total Admin 11,760            105,483          170,000          62.0% 106,037          -0.5%
 

Stop Loss Insurance 60,517            554,285          712,000          77.8% 479,908          15.5%

Claims  

 Medical 648,303          3,032,349       3,675,000       82.5% 2,462,062       23.2%

 Dental 20,575            192,084          285,000          67.4% 193,816          -0.9%
 Prescription 89,567            687,994          815,000          84.4% 602,014          14.3%

  Total Claims 758,445          3,912,427       4,775,000       81.9% 3,257,892       20.1%

Total Costs 836,539          4,647,117       5,794,700       80.2% 3,919,940       18.6%

Employee Payment 71,780            708,762          853,000          83.1% 631,240          

Reimbursements 19,695            300,316          35,000            858.0% 196,476           

NET PLAN COSTS 745,064$        3,638,039$    4,906,700$    74.1% 3,092,224$    17.7%

6



MONTHLY INCOME TAX REVENUES 

2016-2018

 2016    2017    2018   

% OF % OF % OF

W/H PERSONAL BUSINESS TOTAL ACTUAL W/H PERSONAL BUSINESS TOTAL ACTUAL W/H PERSONAL BUSINESS TOTAL BUDGET
               

JANUARY 1,433,007 317,649 37,649 1,788,305 1,794,272 205,680 204,662 2,204,614 1,741,914 440,952 56,565 2,239,431

FEBRUARY 2,161,101 396,158 52,085 2,609,344 1,304,987 327,145 95,437 1,727,569 1,389,553 337,859 56,041 1,783,668

MARCH 1,237,708 545,907 234,748 2,018,363 1,175,241 625,299 195,522 1,996,062 1,240,476 682,589 192,027 2,115,092

APRIL 1,481,257 2,185,373 575,354 4,241,984 1,786,686 2,352,889 1,092,340 5,231,915 1,949,558 2,433,093 806,548 5,189,199

MAY 1,390,669 153,006 33,392 1,577,067 1,388,195    185,269       50,869          1,624,333 1,387,867 213,714 18,117 1,619,698

JUNE 1,267,769 426,520 238,738 1,933,027 1,284,197    481,309       167,392        1,932,898 1,406,699 622,838 374,208 2,403,745

JULY 1,426,206 146,332 33,356 1,605,894 1,680,268 158,901 62,961 1,902,130 1,718,647 227,646 28,964 1,975,257

AUGUST 1,470,975    140,043       25,584          1,636,602 1,395,822 124,025 26,462 1,546,309 1,363,624 171,517 142,149 1,677,290

SEPTEMBER 1,167,550 523,048 257,476 1,948,074 1,303,188 421,650 287,996 2,012,834 1,648,825 624,312 164,383 2,437,520

SUBTOTAL 13,036,242 4,834,036 1,488,382 19,358,660 77.51% 13,112,856 4,882,167 2,183,641 20,178,664 77.92% 13,847,163 5,754,520 1,839,002 21,440,900 78.40%

OCTOBER 1,760,852    262,154       134,880        2,157,886 1,697,249    257,687       81,440          2,036,376

NOVEMBER 1,283,667 213,128 13,244 1,510,039 1,438,751    175,718       30,847          1,645,316

DECEMBER 1,296,162 420,091 232,478 1,948,731 1,419,960 388,069 229,805 2,037,834  

   

  TOTALS 17,376,923 5,729,409 1,868,984 24,975,316 104.09% 17,668,816 5,703,641 2,525,732 25,898,189 97.31% 13,847,163 5,754,520 1,839,002 21,440,900 78.40%

   

  BUDGETED 23,993,421 26,614,811 27,346,537

 

Total Sept YTD  % of Annual Projection based on ten year trend!  

Receipts Receipts  Collections SEPT 2018 RECEIPTS = $21,440,900 

2008 14,159,170 10,910,974   77.06%

2009 14,719,896 11,399,742   77.44%   HIGH = 77.06% $27,823,855 

2010 15,185,348 11,848,076   78.02%   LOW = 78.02% $27,480,201 

2011 17,765,717 13,800,049   77.68%

2012 19,658,101 15,159,887   77.12%   LAST 3 YR 

2013 20,557,766 15,854,987 77.12%   AVG   = 77.52% $27,657,188 

2014 21,537,420 16,610,480 77.12%

2015 22,852,743 17,629,446 77.14% *2018 BUDGETED RECEIPTS $27,346,537 

2016 24,975,316 19,359,107 77.51%

2017 25,898,396 20,178,664 77.91%

10 Year Avg. 77.41%

7



City Manager Report 20181022 

 
 
 
 
TO:  Mayor Riggle and Members of Council 
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Miscellaneous Matters 
 
DATE:  October 18, 2018 
 
 
1. Calendar 
 See Attached 
 
2. Per Section 73 Of The City Charter The City Manager Is To Report 

Contract Agreements 
 See Attached 
 
3. Bi-Weekly Meetings 
  
 October 3 
 * Kroger Grand Re-Opening 
 October 8 
 * Rotary 
 * City Council Meeting 
 October 10 
 * Olentangy Watershed Forum 
 October 11 
 * MORPC  
 October 15 
 * Ribbon Cutting Law Office of Brian Jones 
 * Rotary 
 * OWU Talk 
 October 16 
 * Strand Board Meeting 
  
  



October 
 

 

2018 
Meeting Schedule Council, Boards, Commissions, & Committees 

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 
 1 2 3 4 5 6 

 CIP Work Session 6:30 
pm 
 

 Civil Service 3pm 
 

   

7 8 9                                     10 11 12 13 
 Council 7pm Sister City- 6 pm BZA 7pm    

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 
 Parking & Safety 

6pm 
Parks and Rec 7pm Planning Commission 

7pm 
Airport Commission 
7pm 

  

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 
 City Council 7pm Shade Tree 7pm Civil Service 3pm 

Community Promotions 
5:30 
HPC 7pm 

   

28 29 30 31    
   Halloween    

       
       

 



November 
 

 

2018 
Meeting Schedule Council, Boards, Commissions, & Committees 

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 
    1 2 3 

       

4 5 6                                      7 8 9 10 
 Council Work Session 

6:30 pm 
Public Works/Public 
Utilities cancelled 

Planning Commission 7 
pm 

   

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 
 Council 7pm  BZA 7pm    

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 
  Parks & Rec 7pm  Thanksgiving 

City Offices Closed 
City Offices Closed  

25 26 27 28 29 30 **December 1 
Budget Work Session 

 Council 7pm Shade Tree Commission 
7pm 

HPC 7pm  Main Street Delaware 
Tree Lighting 

 

       
       



 



CONTRACT APPROVAL – October 22, 2018 
 

VENDOR 
 

EXPLANATION OF AGREEMENT 
2018 

AMOUNT 
 

DEPARTMENT 
KMK Consulting Co Non-disclosure agreement for Project 

Strix 
N/A Economic 

Development 
 


	01 20181022 council agenda
	CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

	02 council minutes
	03 20180613 bza minutes
	04 20180710 sister city minutes
	04 20180820 parking minutes
	05 20180717 parks and rec board
	06 20180905 planning minutes
	07 fact sheet res 18 -55,  agreement VECHS
	08 res 18-55,  VECHS
	09 VECHS USER AGREEMENT
	10 fact sheet res 18-56,  Glengary Dr Curve Parking Restrictions
	11 RES 18-56, Glengary Dr Curve Parking Restrictions
	12 Exhibt A - Glengary Dr No Parking Anytime Zone
	13 Sister City Annual Report - 2018
	14 fact sheet ORD 18-90 approving Terra Alta NCA
	15 Ord 18- 90, Approving Creation of NCA
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-90
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	16 New Community Authority Guideline Draft REVISED
	17 ord 18-77, terra alta nca petition
	18 fact sheet ord 18-89, water surcharge
	19 Sewer surcharge draft ordinance (3) (2)
	20 fact sheet ord 18-88, amend sec 549.08 discharge of firearms
	21 ord 18-88, amendment to section 549.08 Discharge of firearms
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-88

	22 fact sheet ord 18-80  accept annex boy scouts camp lazarus
	23 ord 18-80, accept annex boy scouts camp lazarus
	24 Boy Scouts of America Granting of Prayer (1)
	25 Boy Scouts of America Granting of Prayer (2)
	26  res 18-36, boy scouts camp lazarus annex
	27 fact sheet ord 18- 73, rezone Highpoint Place Apts
	28 ord 18-73, rezone Highpoint Place Apts
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-73

	29 fact sheet ord 18-74, CUP Highpoint Place Apts
	30 ord 18-74, CUP Highpoint Place Apts
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-74

	31 fact sheet ord 18-75, PDP Highpoint Place Apts
	32 ord 18-75, PDP Highpoint Place Apts
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-75

	33 174-901 Engineer's Cost Estimate20181015
	34 1902_001
	35 2544_001
	36 2018-1402-1404 highpoint place apartments staff report
	37 factsheet ord 18-91, 2018-2385 Camp Lazarus  REZ
	38 ord 18-91, 2018-2385 Camp Lazarus REZ
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-91
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	39 factsheet ord 18-92  , 2018-2387 Camp Lazarus  CUP
	40 ord 18-92, 2018-2387 Camp Lazarus CUP
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-92
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	41 factsheet ord 18-93, 2018-2386 Camp Lazarus  PDP
	42 ord 18-93 , 2018-2386 Camp Lazarus PDP
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-93
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	43 2018 2358-2387 Boy Scouts of America
	44 fact sheet ord 18-94, 2018-2459 Belmont Place REZ
	45 ord 18-94 , rezone 2018-2459 Belmont Place West
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-94
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	46 fact sheet ord 18-95 , 2018-2460 Belmont Place PDP
	47 ord 18-95, 2018-2460 Belmont Place PDP
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-95
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	48 fact sheet ord 18-96 , 2018-2461 Belmont Place PSP
	49 ord 18-96 , 2018-2461 Belmont Place PSP
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-96
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	50 2018-2459-2461 Belmont Place West
	20181012135757989.pdf
	20181012135826552.pdf

	51 Fact Sheet ord 18-97 , 2018-2493 River Street Business Park FDP
	52 ord 18-97, 2018-2493 River Street Business Park FDP
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-97
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	53 fact sheet ord 18-98 , 2018-2494 River Street Business Park SVAC
	54 ord 18-98, 2018-2494 River Street Business Park SVAC
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-98
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	55 2018-2493-2494 river street staff report
	56 factsheet ord 18-99, 2018-2462 The Weselyan Inn  CUP
	57 ord 18-99, 2018-2462- The Wesleyan Inn CUP
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-99
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	58 factsheet ord 18-100, 2018-2463 The Weselyan Inn  PDP
	59 ord 18-100 , 2018-2463- The Wesleyan Inn PDP
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-100
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	60 2018 2462-2463 Wesleyan Inn
	61 Fact Sheet 18-101 ,  supplemental Johnson Lawsuit
	62 ord 18-101 , supplemental Johnson Lawsuit
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____

	63 Fact Sheet Ord 18-102, Supplemental 23 & Glenn Pkwy
	64 Ordinance 18-102,  Supplemental 23 & Glenn Pkwy
	65 Fact Sheet RES 18-57,  Establish Schultz School Zone
	66 RES 18-57 Establish Schultz Elementary School Zone
	67 Exhibt A - Schultz Elementary School Zone Extension & School  Flasher-RR...
	68 Rock Creek Dr  Willow Run Ln Multi-Way Stop Analysis Memo 100518
	69 Fact Sheet Ord 18-103, Funding for Schultz School Zone
	70 Ord 18-103 Funding for Schultz School Zone
	71 Exhibt A - Schultz Elementary School Zone Extension & School  Flasher-RR...
	72 Rock Creek Dr  Willow Run Ln Multi-Way Stop Analysis Memo 100518
	73 fact sheet res 18-58, indigent defense services
	74 res 18-58 , indigent defense services with county
	75 fact sheet res 18- 59, Issue 1 resolution
	76 res 18-59 , Issue 1 resolution second draft
	77 September 2018-Finance report
	78 city managers report 20181022
	79 October Calendar 2018
	80 November Calendar 2018
	81 contract approval 20181022
	CONTRACT APPROVAL – October 22, 2018
	2018
	DEPARTMENT
	AMOUNT
	VENDOR
	EXPLANATION OF AGREEMENT

	N/A
	KMK Consulting Co
	Non-disclosure agreement for Project Strix



